
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

s 
 
 

Title: Audit & Standards Committee 

Date: 20 November 2012 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillors: Hamilton (Chair), A Norman 
(Opposition Spokesperson), Duncan, Follett, 
Lepper, Smith, Sykes and Wealls 

 Co-opted Members: Dr David Horne and Dr Lel 
Meleyal 

Contact: Ross Keatley 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291064 
ross.keatley@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Democratic Services: Audit & Standards Committee                    

Public Seating 

Press 

Presenting 
Officer 

Councillor 
Hamilton 
Chair 

Acting  
Director of 
Finance 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Head of  
Law 

Presenting 
Officer 

Councillor  
A. Norman 

Councillor 
Smith 

Councillor 
Wealls 

Councillor 
Lepper 

Councillor 
Sykes 

Councillor 
Follett 

Councillor 
Duncan 

Dr David 
Horne 

Independent 
Member 

Dr Lel Meleyal 
Independent 
Member 

 

Officers 

Officers 

Officers 

Officers 



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

44. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend 
a meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest:  
 

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the register 
of interests; 

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local 
code; 

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on 
the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a 
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in 
the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare  
(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii) the nature of the interest; and 
(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 
 

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer 
or administrator preferably before the meeting. 

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

45. MINUTES 1 - 8 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 25th September 2012 
(copy attached). 

 

 
 

46. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

47. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT  

 To consider the following matters raised by members of the public: 
 

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions presented to the full council 
or at the meeting itself; 

 
(b) Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the 

due date of 12 noon on the 13 November 2012; 
 

(c) Deputations:  
 

(i) To receive a deputation referred from Council on the 25th 
October 2012, concerning Gill’s Home and Garden Regarding 
Exercise of Power by Elected Officials – Lead Petitioner, Mr. 
Adam Campbell. 
 
(ii) To receive any deputations submitted by the due date of 12 
noon on the 13 November 2012; or any referred from Council 
on the 25 October 2012. 

 

 

 

48. MEMBER INVOLVEMENT  

 To consider the following matters raised by councillors: 
 

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions submitted to the full Council 
or at the meeting itself; 

 
(b) Written Questions: to consider any written questions; 

 
(c) Letters: to consider any letters; 

 
(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred 

from Council or submitted directly to the Committee. 

 

 

 STANDARDS ITEMS 

 

49. COMPLAINTS UPDATE 9 - 12 

 Report of the Monitoring Officer (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Brian Foley Tel: 291229  

 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 
 
 
 
 
 



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
 

 AUDIT ITEMS 

 

50. HR/PAYROLL SYSTEM  

 Verbal Update on Progress from the Head of HR Strategy Policy & 
Projects. 

 

 Contact Officer: Katie Ogden Tel: 29-1299  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

51. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT  

 Verbal Update on Progress from External Auditor.  

 Contact Officer: Simon Mathers, Ernst & 
Young 

  

 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

52. AUDIT COMMISSION: ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2011/12 13 - 16 

 Report of the Acting Director of Finance, together with the Annual Audit 
Letter (copies attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Nigel Manvell Tel: 29-3104  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

53. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2012/13 17 - 22 

 Report of the Acting Director of Finance (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

54. TARGETED BUDGET MANAGEMENT (TBM) 2012/13 MONTH 5 23 - 82 

 Report of the Acting Director of Finance (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Nigel Manvell,  
Jeff Coates 

Tel: 29-3104,  
Tel: 29-2364 

 

 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

55. STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UPDATE 83 - 96 

 Report of the Acting Director of Finance (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Jackie Algar Tel: 29-1273  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

56. ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 13 December 2012 Council 
meeting for information. 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may 
determine that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In 

 



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
 

addition, any Group may specify one further item to be included by 
notifying the Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working 
day before the Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if 
the Committee meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the 
conclusion of the Committee meeting 

 

 
 

Part Two  

 
 

57. PART TWO MINUTES - EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 97 - 100 

 To consider the part two minutes of the meeting held on 25th September 
2012 (circulated to Members only). 

 

 Contact Officer: Ross Keatley Tel: 291064  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

58. STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN REPORT - 
EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 

101 - 114 

 Report of the Acting Director of Finance (circulated to Members only).  

 Contact Officer: Jackie Algar Tel: 29-1273  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

59. STRATEGIC RISK MAP FOCUS – SR2 FINANCIAL OUTLOOK - 
EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 

 

 Verbal report from the Acting Director of Finance.  

 Contact Officer: Jackie Algar Tel: 29-1273  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

60. PART TWO PROCEEDINGS  

 To consider whether the items listed in Part Two of the agenda and 
decisions thereon should remain exempt from disclosure to the press 
and public. 

 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
 

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Head of Democratic Services or 
the designated Democratic Services Officer listed on the agenda. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Ross Keatley, (01273 
291064), email ross.keatley@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk. 
 

 

Date of Publication – Monday 12th November 2012 

 

 

 





1 
 

 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

4.00pm 25 SEPTEMBER 2012 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Hamilton (Chair) A Norman (Opposition Spokesperson), Duncan, 
Follett, Lepper, Smith, Sykes and Wealls 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Hawtree 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

25. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
25a) Declaration of Substitutes 
 
25.1 There were none 
 
25b) Declarations of Interest 
 
25.2 There were none. 
 
25c) Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
25.3 In accordance with Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 

Planning Committee considered whether the public should be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of any item of business on the grounds that it is likely in 
view of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members 
of the public were present during it, there would be disclosure to them of confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act. 

 
25.4 RESOLVED - That the public are excluded from the meeting from items listed on Part 2 

of the agenda.  
 
 
26. MINUTES 
 
26.1 RESOLVED – That the Chair be authorised to sign the minutes of the meeting held on 

26 June 2012 as a correct record. 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 45 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

1



 

2 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 25 SEPTEMBER 
2012 

27. CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
27.1 The order of the substantive items on the agenda would be changed so that Items 34 & 

35 would be taken ahead of the others.  
 
27.2 In relation to the two vacant independent co-optee positions on the Committee it was 

highlighted that 14 applicants had applied; 7 had been shortlisted, and were due to be 
interviewed on 1 October 2012. 

 
28. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
28.1 There were none. 
 
29. MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 
 
29.1 There were none. 
 
30. ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS INTERESTS 
 
30.1 The Acting Assistant Head of Law, Elizabeth Culbert, provided an update, and explained 

that this was the first meeting of the Committee since the new Code of Conduct had 
been agreed by Full Council. New Register of Interest forms had been completed and 
returned by all 54 City Councillors, and the register had been updated and was available 
for inspection; the register for Rottingdean Parish Council Members had also been 
updated. 

 
30.2 The Chair noted he was pleased that all Members had completed and returned the new 

forms. 
 
31. COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 
 
31.1 The Committee considered a report of the Monitoring Officer in relation to the new 

arrangements for dealing with the investigation and hearing of complaints as part of the 
changes to the regulation of Standards of Conduct for elected Members bought in by the 
Localism Act 2011. The new arrangements provided a simplified process for dealing 
with complaints of misconduct and the actions which could be taken against a Member 
who is found to have failed to comply with the Code of Conduct. By way of introduction 
the Standards & Complaints Manager, Brian Foley, outlined the new procedure 

 
31.2 In response to queries from Councillor Duncan it was confirmed that the right of appeal 

would apply to both the complainant, and the Member the allegation had been made 
against, and sanctions would only take effect after the period to request an appeal had 
expired. 

 
31.3 Councillors Sykes and Lepper noted some minor typographical errors of the names of 

political groups, and asked that that some of the wording be amended to reflect the 
potential future political makeup of the authority; rather than the current political 
makeup. 

 

2



 

3 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 25 SEPTEMBER 
2012 

31.4 Councillor Ann Norman noted that she and Councillor Lepper had been involved in 
Standards related work under the previous regime for some years, and she stated that 
Members should always approach the investigation of complaints of a neutral mind and 
in a non-political manner. The Chair echoed these comments, and highlighted the non-
political regulatory nature of the Committee.  

 
31.5 RESOLVED: 
 
(1) That the arrangements for the investigation and hearing of complaints about Member 

conduct as set out in Appendix 1 to the report and as illustrated in the flow chart in 
Appendix 2 to the report be adopted; 
 

(2) That the adopted new arrangements be reported to Council for information; 
 

(3) That the Monitoring Officer be instructed to develop technical procedures for the 
investigation and hearing of complaints to be used in conjunction with the arrangements; 
and 
 

(4) That the Monitoring Officer be instructed to publicise the arrangements for the 
investigation and hearing of complaints by whatever means he considers appropriate.  

 
32. COMPLAINTS UPDATE 
 
32.1 The Committee considered a report of the Monitoring Officer with an update on 

allegations about Member conduct following the last report to the Committee on 26 June 
2012; a summary of closed cases was listed at Appendix 1. 

 
32.2 RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report. 
 
33. ROTTINGDEAN PARISH COUNCIL: ADOPTION OF NEW CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
33.1 The Committee considered a report of the Monitoring Officer reporting back on the 

instruction of the Committee to consult with Rottingdean Parish Council over the new 
standards regime required by the Localism Act 2011. The report included details of the 
Code of Conduct adopted by the Parish Council, and the arrangements for the register 
of Parish Council Members’ interests. By way of introduction the Lawyer, Oliver Dixon, 
stated that Rottingdean Parish Council had adopted the same Code of Conduct as the 
City Council, and this included an amendment to Standing Orders such that a Member 
would be required to leave a meeting during the consideration of an item of which they 
had declared a disclosable non-pecuniary interest. Mr Rhodes, a Rottingdean Parish 
Councillor, was also in attendance and expressed his gratitude on behalf of the Parish 
Council to the Lawyer and Monitoring Officer. 

 
33.2 RESOLVED – That the Committee note the report. 
 
34. AUDIT COMMISSION: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2011/12 
 
34.1 The Committee considered a report of the Audit Commission summarising the findings 

of the 2011/12 audit which was now substantially complete. It included key messages 
arising from the audit of the financial statement and the results of work undertaken to 

3



 

4 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 25 SEPTEMBER 
2012 

assess the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money in its use of its resources. 
By way of introduction the District Auditor, Helen Thompson, highlighted the key 
messages including: reference to three uncorrected errors for Members’ consideration; 
recommendations and actions for improvement, and stated that the audit had been 
delivered within the agreed fee. 

 
34.2 Councillor Wealls asked a series of questions in relation to the assessment of value for 

money, and in particular how the Council attributed overheads. In response, and 
discussion, Officers explained this was undertaken by looking at how services were 
delivered within the normal budget, and by comparing historic data with other similar 
authorities. Consideration was also given to performance against targets as well as 
benchmarking with other authorities when assessing the value for money provided by a 
service. Officers explained that there was a standard methodology for calculating and 
presenting overheads when comparing the cost of services. This is determined by 
central government when collecting financial information, for example, in the annual 
‘Revenue Outturn’ (RO) returns. When services were compared it was also important 
this was done on a like for like basis within and across sectors. To establish the full 
costs it was necessary to include all relevant corporate overheads; overall these were 
relatively small for the Council, approximately 5% of gross expenditure, but the Council 
still needed to be satisfied that these were correct and reasonable. 

 
34.3 Councillor Sykes pointed to comments in the report in relation to payroll, and asked 

questions about the backlog of documentation referred in the report. In response it was 
explained that the process had been easier this year than in the previous, but there 
were still issues with the complexity of the payroll system. Priority had been given to 
addressing the problem, and improvements had already been made. 

 
34.4 Councillor Sykes went on to ask what more radical solutions the Council could consider 

to achieve value for money. In response it was explained that many other local 
authorities were in a very similar position, facing a continued reduction in funding, and 
had looked at similar value for money initiatives to those undertaken by the Council. 
‘Systems Thinking’ initiative had been praised as a good way to help deliver better value 
for money in more processed based services. Councillor Norman asked further queries 
in relation to the initiative, and it was explained that the Council was currently 
developing this; two temporary posts had been appointed to as part of this work, and 
there was currently a pilot in HR that was nearing completion.  

 
34.5 Councillor Wealls pointed to differences between the actual and estimate of employer 

contributions to the pension scheme, and asked for an explanation about this. It was 
explained that the difference was not material, and the Council was required to provide 
an estimate to the Actuary each year; the estimate was produced using end of month 
data, and it was normal for there to be a degree of difference. Councillor Wealls asked if 
there was adequate provision to properly estimate the impact of auto-enrolment into the 
pension scheme, and it was explained that the Council was managing this and were 
planning on the basis of a greater employer’s contribution rate. 

 
34.6 In response to a query from the Chair, Councillor Hamilton, further details were provided 

in relation to the three errors which the Council had declined to amend. The first related 
to the payroll findings which was an estimated error only and therefore it was not 
considered appropriate to adjust the accounts; the second related to the timing for the 

4



 

5 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 25 SEPTEMBER 
2012 

depreciation of an asset, which had been done earlier than normal but which had no 
other implications, and the final error was a presentational error only where a creditor 
and debtor entry were netted off but which did not effect the bottom line of the Council’s 
net assets. Following further queries it was confirmed that the depreciation in question 
related to construction of BACA and that the calculation of depreciation would be correct 
over the useful life of the asset regardless of the error; it was also explained that the 
Council was not funded to provide for depreciation; only the actual borrowing and 
financing costs on its assets, and therefore depreciation had no real cash flow 
implication for the council. Officers also highlighted that the three errors were not 
material, and the key aspect of the report was that they would not affect the external 
auditor’s unqualified opinion on the accounts. 

 
34.7 RESOLVED –  

 
(1) That note is taken of the adjustments to the financial statements which are set out in 

Appendix 3 of the report. 
 

(2) That it be agreed to adjust the errors in the financial statements which management has 
declined to amend set out in Appendix 2 of the report or set out the reasons for not 
amending the errors. 
 

(3) That the letter of representation on behalf of the Council before the audit opinion and 
value for money conclusion is given be approved. A draft of the letter of representation 
is included at Appendix 4 of the report. This contains management’s reasons for not 
adjusting errors in the financial statements set out at Appendix 2 of the report. 
 

(4) That the Committee response to the proposed action plan included at Appendix 6 of the 
report be agreed. 

 
 
35. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/12 
 
35.1 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance with information about the 

audit of the 2011/12 Accounts with a recommendation to approve the Statement of 
Accounts and the Letter of Representation on behalf of the Council. 

 
35.2 Councillor Sykes asked if the Council might, in future, include environmental assets in 

an audit, and in response Officers commented that - although this was not currently the 
case - in future assets could potentially be divided into heritage and environmental. 

 
35.3 Councillor Sykes also asked a further question in relation to exit packages in previous 

financial years. In response Officers explained that they reflected changes that had 
taken place organisationally, and - although they fluctuated year on year – in the case of 
senior exits – they were assessed for value for money on a case-by-case basis. 

 
35.4 RESOLVED 
 
(1) That the findings of the Audit Commission in their Annual Governance Report (AGR) be 

noted. The AGR is a separate item on this agenda. 
 

5



 

6 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 25 SEPTEMBER 
2012 

(2) That the adjusted misstatements to the 2011/12 Statement of Accounts (paragraph 7.3 
and Appendix 4) are noted. 

 
(3) That the Committee consideration is given to the advice in relation to unadjusted 

misstatements, and agree that they should not be adjusted for (paragraph 7.4 and 
Appendix 5). 

 
(4) That the results of the public inspection of the accounts (Section 9) are noted. 
 
(5) That the letter of representation on behalf of the council (Appendix 1) be approved. 
 
(6) That the management responses to the action plan in the AGR be approved. 
 
(7) That the audited Statement of Accounts for 2011/12 be approved. 

 
36. TARGETED BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2012/13 MONTH 2 
 
36.1 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance on the Targeted Budget 

Monitoring (TBM), a key component of the Council’s overall performance monitoring and 
control framework. The forecast outturn position was set out as of Month 2 on the 
Council’s revenue and capital budgets for the financial year 2012/13. 

 
36.2 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report. 
 
37. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
37.1 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance on the progress made 

against the Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13, including the outcomes of specific audit 
reviews completed, agreed management actions, and Internal Audit Key Performance 
Indicators. 

 
37.2 Members raised queries on the content of completed audits, and the Chair asked for 

these to be followed directly with Officers outside of the meeting. 
 
37.3 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report. 
 
38. FIGHTING FRAUD LOCALLY 
 
38.1 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Finance in relation to Fighting 

Fraud Locally, a national report recently issued by the National Fraud Authority; the 
report sought to inform Members of a review carried out to measure the Council against 
the best practise checklist issued with the national report for an effective counter fraud 
culture. 

 
38.2 In response to query from Councillor Wealls in relation to CRB checks, and other pre-

employment screening it was agreed that a note would be circulated to the Committee 
separately to confirm the situation and the process. 

 
38.3 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the report. 
 

6



 

7 
 

AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 25 SEPTEMBER 
2012 

39. ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL 
 
39.1 Item 31 Complaints Update was forwarded to the Council meeting on 25 October 2012 

for noting, as per the recommendation in the report. 
 
40. PART TWO MINUTES 
 
40.1 RESOLVED – That the Chair be authorised to sign the Part 2 minutes of the meeting 

held on 26 June 2012 as a correct record. 
 
41. COMPLAINTS UPDATE (SEPTEMBER 2012) (EXEMPT CATEGORY 1) 
 
41.1 RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
42. STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT ACTION PLAN FOCUS – SR4, 5 AND 8 
 
42.1 RESOLVED – That the recommendation in the Part 2 report be agreed. 
 
43. PART  TWO PROCEEDINGS 
 
43.1 RESOLVED – That the Part 2 Items remain exempt from disclosure from the press and 

public. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 18.05 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

7



8



AUDIT & STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 49 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

  

Subject: Complaints Update  

Date of Meeting: 20 November 2011 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  Brian Foley Tel: 293109      

 E-mail: brian.foley@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The Localism Act 2011 has required the Council to adopt new arrangements for 

dealing with complaints about a breach of the Code of Conduct by Council and 
Parish Council Members. Those arrangements replace the previous process 
administered under the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008. 

 
1.2 This paper updates the Audit and Standards Committee on allegations about 

member conduct following the last report to Audit and Standards Committee on 
25 September 2012. Cases which have been closed are summarised in 
Appendix 1.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION: 

  

2.1 That the Committee note the report. 
 

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
3.1 The timescales for dealing with complaints as set out in the new 

arrangements are as follow:  
 

o Complaints about Member conduct should be acknowledged as soon 
as possible and within a maximum of 5 working days. 

o The complainant should be informed within 10 working days how the 
matter will be dealt with. 

o The whole complaint process should be completed within 65 working 
days from the date of receipt to date of hearing. 

 
3.2 The Transitional Arrangements set out under the Localism Act required that 

any complaint dealt with under the Standards Committee (England) 
Regulations 2008 which had not been concluded by 01 July 2012 should be 
dealt with under the new Localism Act arrangements. 

 

9



 

 2 

3.3 There is one complaint which falls into this category; the outcome is 
described in the Appendix.  

 
3.4 There have been 4 new complaints received which have not previously 

been included in reports to the Audit and Standards Committee. All cases 
have been referred to the Monitoring Officer to decide in consultation with 
an Independent Person if the complaint merits investigation. Those 
decisions are pending. 

 
3.5 The following chart shows that all complaints have been acknowledged 

within 5 days. 
 

Acknowledgement and Response Times

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

BHC-009244 BHC-009921 BHC-009972 BHC-009992 BHC-010179

Case reference

W
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s

Days to acknowledge Max to ack

Days to respond Max to respond
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 

 3 

4. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
  
 Financial Implications: 
 
4.1 There are no direct financial implications relating to this report. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley Date: 19 October 2012 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  

4.2 The report is for noting only. The statutory framework under which complaints 
about Member conduct are dealt with are covered in the body of the report. The 
transitional arrangements referred to in paragraph 3.2 above are set out in the 
Localism Act 2011 (Commencement No. 6 and Transitional, Savings and 
Transitory Provisions) Order 2012: SI 2012/1463 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Oliver Dixon Date: 19 October 2012 
 
 Equalities Implications:  
 
4.3 There are no Equalities implications 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
  

4.4 There are no Sustainability implications 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
  

4.5 There are no Crime and Disorder implications 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
  
 

4.6 There are no Risk and Opportunity Management implications 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
4.7 There are no Corporate or Citywide implications 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
1. Summary of the decisions for complaints that have been concluded. 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
1. None 
  
Background Documents 
1. None 

 

11



 

 4

 

Appendix 1 - Summary of the decisions for complaints that have been 

concluded. 
 

S&C Reference Number BHC-008869 

Date Received 08/06/2012 

Days to Acknowledge 08/06/2012 (1 day) 

Days for Monitoring Officer to reply  (12 days to Assessment Panel) 

Date of Hearing Panel 08 November 2012 

Days to Hearing Panel 109 

Comments: This case has been dealt with under the transitional arrangements. 
The Standards Panel could not hear the case until the procedures were agreed 
and an Independent Person appointed 

Complainant 
Committee Members of Saltdean 
Community Association 

 

Summary of Complaint 

Upon leaving a meeting of the Saltdean Community Association a councillor was 
alleged to have been overheard to say “they” (referring to the executive 
members of the Community Association) “are only in it for themselves”. The 
Committee members said this statement denigrates and calls into question the 
integrity and community service of the committee members 

Section of Code of Conduct that applies 

Paragraph 3(1) You must treat others with respect 

Summary of Progress  

The Hearing Panel has ben set for 08 November 2012. There will be a verbal 
update to Audit and Standards Committee describing the outcome of the case. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

12



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Agenda Item 52 

 

 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 

Date of Meeting: 20th November  2012 

Report of: Acting Director of Finance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Nigel Manvell, Acting  

Director of Finance 

Tel: 29-1233 

 E-mail: Nigel.manvell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

 

1.  SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT 

 
1.1 The Annual Audit Letter summarises the 2011/12 audit of Brighton & Hove 

City Council which includes the opinion on the financial statements and 
value for money conclusion. 

 
1.2 There is a requirement for the Annual Audit Letter to be made available to 

all Members. 
 

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1       That the Committee considers and notes the contents of the Annual Audit Letter 
for 2011/12. 

 
3.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

  

3.1 The summary detailed within the Annual Audit Letter has already been 
considered by the Council’s Audit & Standards Committee on 25th 
September as part of the Audit Commission’s Annual Governance Report. 

 
4.   FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
4.1 The Annual Audit letter is a key element of financial governance. There are 

no financial implications arising from this report. 
  
Finance Officer consulted:  Anne Silley                       8th November 2012 

   
 Legal Implications: 

 
4.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

 
  Legal Officer consulted:  Oliver Dixon                    8th November 2012 
   

13



Equalities Implications: 
 

4.3 There are no direct equalities implications arising directly from this report 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
4.4 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications: 
 
4.5 There no direct implications for the prevention of crime and disorder arising   

 from this report. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications: 
 

4.6      There no direct implications for the risk and opportunity management arising    
from this report. 

 
Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
4.6 Robust corporate governance arrangements are essential to the sound 

management of the City Council and the achievement of its objectives as set out 
in the Corporate Plan. 

 
 
 

 

14



Audit Commission, Suite 2, Ground Floor, Bicentennial Building, Southern Gate, 
Chichester, West Sussex, PO19 8EZ 
T 0844 798 1717 F 0844 798 1705  www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

Our reference HT/BHCC/1112AAL

3 October 2012 

Direct line 0844 798 1790 

Email helen-

thompson@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Council member 
Brighton & Hove City Council 
King's House 
Grand Avenue 
Hove
BN3 2LS 

Dear Member 

Brighton & Hove City Council Annual Audit Letter 2011/12 

I am pleased to submit my Annual Audit Letter which summarises my 2011/12 audit of Brighton 
& Hove City Council. 

Financial statements and value for money conclusion 

On 25 September 2012 I presented my annual governance report to the Audit & Standards 
Committee outlining the findings of my audit of the Council’s 2011/12 financial statements and 
the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. I will not replicate those findings in this letter. 

Following the Standards & Audit Committee on 26 September I: 

  issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s 2011/12 financial statements included in 
the Council’s Statement of Accounts; 

  concluded that there are no matters arising from my value for money work that I need to 
report; and 

  certified completion of the audit. 

15



2

Closing remarks 

I have discussed and agreed this letter with the Acting Chief Executive and Acting Director of 
Finance. I would like to thank finance staff for the positive and constructive approach they have 
taken to my audit. I also wish to thank senior management and the Audit & Standards 
Committee for their support and co-operation during the audit. 

Yours sincerely 

Helen Thompson 
District Auditor

16



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Agenda Item 53 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Internal Audit Progress Report  2012/13 

Date of Meeting: 20th November  2012 

Report of: Acting Director of Finance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Ian Withers, Head of Audit & 
Business Risk 

Tel: 29-1323 

 E-mail: Ian.withers@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the progress made   

against the Internal Audit Plan 2012/13, including outcomes of specific audit 
reviews completed, agreed management actions and Internal Audit Key 
Performance Indicators.   

 
1.2 The Audit & Standards Committee has a role in monitoring the activity and 

outcomes of internal audit work against the plan and receiving regular 
progress reports.  Also to monitor the implementation of agreed actions to 
internal audit recommendations for improvement to controls and operations. 

 
1.3 Good progress continues to be made in the delivery of the Internal Audit 

Plan 2012/13, due by the end of March 2013. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1       That the Committee notes the progress made in delivering the Annual Internal 
Audit Plan 2012/13, outcomes achieved and current arrangements going 
forward to 31st March 2013. 

 
3.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
  

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require every local authority to 
maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit.    Audit & 
Business Risk carries out the internal audit work to satisfy this legislative 
requirement and part of this is reporting the outcome of its work to the Audit 
& Standards Committee.   

 
3.2 The Audit & Standards Committee has a responsibility for reviewing the 

Council’s corporate governance arrangements, including internal control 
and formally approving the Annual Governance Statement.  The internal 
audit work carried out by Audit & Business Risk is a key source of 
assurance that the internal control environment is operating effectively.   

 

17



3.3 The Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 detailing the programme of audit reviews 
was approved by the previous Audit Committee at its meeting in April 2012. 

      
3.4      The programme of audit reviews contained in the Internal Audit Plan 

2012/13 is based on an assessment of risk for each system or operational 
area.  The assessment of risk includes elements such as the level of 
corporate importance, materiality, service delivery/importance and 
sensitivity. 

 
3.4 The outcome of all audit work is discussed and agreed with the lead service 

managers.  The final reports that include agreed actions to audit 
recommendations made, are issued to the responsible Head of Service, 
Lead Commissioner or Strategic Director. 

 
4. PROGRESS AGAINST THE INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 
 
4.1 Table 1 below provides a summary of the progress made with delivering the 

Internal Audit Plan 2012/13. During the period 1st April to 5th November 
2012, the Internal Audit Team has commenced or completed 59 audit 
reviews 

 
Table 1: Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 Progress (Audit Reviews) 

 

Audit Status Explanation No. 

Not Started Planned but not started 42 

Fieldwork In progress (Interviews,  documenting, evaluating and 
testing of risks and controls) 

33 

Draft Report Draft audit report issued and being agreed with client 14 

Final Report Audits completed and final report issued 22 

  111 

 
4.2 We are confident in completing the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 

through re-profiling and if required outsourcing a number of audit reviews to 
Deloitte under existing contract arrangements. 

 
5.    CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

 

5.1 Since the Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 was approved, there have been no 
significant changes made. 

 
6.    AUDIT REVIEWS COMPLETED 
 
6.1 Audit reports are issued as final where their contents have been agreed 

with client management, in particular management actions with 
responsibility and timescale.  The audit is then effectively closed except for 
the scheduled implementation review to of agreed actions. 

 
6.2 Since the last progress report at the end of September, a further nine audit 

reviews have been completed and final reports issued.  These are shown 
in table 2 below which includes the overall level of assurance, number and 
classification of agreed management actions to audit recommendations 
made.  

18



 
     Table 2: Summary of Completed Audit Reviews (Final Reports)   

 
Audit Assurance 

Level 
Agreed  Actions and Priority 

  High Medium Low 

Leaving Care Reasonable 0 8 2 

Building Control Reasonable 0 3 4 

Staff Expenses Reasonable 0 11 1 

Council Tax Support -  Financial Modelling Substantial 0 1 0 

Council Tax support  - Project Assurance Substantial 0 0 1 

Licensing (Income Control) Substantial 0 2 0 

Council Tax & Business Rates Write Offs Substantial 0 1 1 

Pupil Premium Funding Substantial 0 0 1 

Pension Administration Reasonable 0 7 0 

 
 
6.3 Management actions have been agreed to the recommendations made and 

we will continue working with management to introduce agreed control and 
general service improvements, in particular where audit reviews give limited 
assurance. 

 
6.4 The statement on the level of assurance on the effectiveness of internal 

controls and mitigation of risks for each audit is a professional practice 
requirement. Members should note that the assurance levels assigned and 
agreed are subjective and based on materiality and significance.  They 
often therefore have no direct relationship with the number of agreed 
actions to audit recommendations made. 

 
6.5    There are currently five levels of audit assurance used by the Internal Audit 

Team and these are summarised as follows: 
 
 

 
FULL 

There is a sound system of internal control designed 
to achieve system and service objectives.  All major 
risks have been identified and managed effectively. 

 
SUBSTANTIAL 

Whilst there is basically a sound system of internal 
control, there are weaknesses that put system 
objectives at risk. 

 
REASONABLE 

Controls are in place but there are gaps in the 
process.  There is therefore a need to introduce 
additional controls. 

 
LIMITED 

Weaknesses in the system of control and /or level of 
compliance are such to put the system objectives at 
risk. 

 
NO 

Control is significantly weak or non existent leaving 
the system open to high level of risk from abuse, 
fraud and error. 

 
 

7.    ADVICE AND SUPPORT CORPORATE AND SERVICE UNITS 

 

7.1 Demand from managers continues to be high for us to provide professional 
proactive advice and support. This element of our work is seen as 

19



invaluable both corporately and service level, particularly in areas of change 
management.  By taking this proactive approach, often problems and risks 
to the council can be avoided.  

 
7.2  Recent areas of advice provided includes health & safety, sustainability, 

schools governance, procurement, human resource management, public 
health, major projects and welfare reform. 

 
8. COUNTER FRAUD WORK 

 
8.1 Since April 2012, 83 new cases of suspected irregularities have been      

identified or referred to Audit & Business Risk.  Of these new cases, 58 
related to potential housing fraud, principally illegal subletting.  

 
8.2 Audit & Business Risk have continued to investigate data matches from the 

latest National Fraud Initiative (NFI) which has so far identified 
overpayments/savings from fraud and error of £503k.  As part of NFI, 
arrangements are made to ensure compliance with the Data Protection Act 
in the sharing of data and ensuring data subjects are notified. 

 
9. IMPLEMENTATION OF AGREED AUDIT ACTIONS 

 

9.1 When unacceptable risks are identified in audit reviews, recommendations 
are made and agreed actions to mitigate these through improvement of 
system controls. 

 
9.2 Implementation reviews for agreed actions to audit recommendation made, 

are usually carried out within six months of the issue of the final report.  
 
 

9.3 Since April 10 implementation reviews have been carried out on agreed 
management actions (38) from previous completed audit reviews. The 
number of implementation reviews is lower than expected, due to other work 
commitments.    Priority will be given in quarter 3 to ensuring all planned 
implementation reviews are carried out. 
 

9.4 The level of implementation of agreed management actions is 74% fully, 
22% partial/in progress and 4% not implemented yet.  Of these 96% of high 
priority actions have been implemented, the remaining 4% partial/in 
progress. 

 
10.  PERFORMANCE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
10.1 To achieve planned coverage and deliver a high quality service we have well 

established performance indicators, agreed annually as part of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan.   These are also part of our business planning process 
and monitored regularly. Table 3 provides an overview of the performance of 
the Internal Audit Team against the key targets set. 

 
 
 
 
 

20



Table 3:  Performance against targets 
 

Performance Indicators Target 
for Year  

Actual  to 
Date 

Effectiveness   

% of recommendations agreed 97% 95% 

% implementation of agreed management actions 85% 74% 

Efficiency   

% of productive time  71% 69% 

% of draft reports issued within 10 days of fieldwork completion 90% 91% 

% response by client to draft reports within 15 days 90% 87% 

% of issue of final reports within 10 days of agreement 95% 94% 

Quality of Service   

% of customer satisfaction feedback in very good or good 90% 96% 

 
11. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 

11.1 It is expected that the Internal Audit Plan for 2012/13 will be delivered within 
existing budgetary resources.  In considering resources allocated to internal 
audit work this needs to be balanced against the need for financial probity, 
financial risks and achieving value for money.  
 
Finance Officer consulted: Anne Silley                       7th November 2012 

   
 Legal Implications: 

 
11.2 Regulation 6 of The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011 requires the Council to 

undertake an adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and 
of its system of internal control in accordance with the proper practices in relation 
to internal control.  It is a legitimate part of the Audit & Standards Committee’s 
role to review the level of work completed and planned by internal audit. 
 
Legal Officer consulted: Oliver Dixon                         7th November 2012 
 

 Equalities Implications: 
 

11.3 There are no direct equalities implications arising directly from this report 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
11.4 There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications: 
 
11.5 There no direct implications for the prevention of crime and disorder arising from 

this report. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications: 
 

11.6  The Internal Audit Plan and its outcome is a key part of the Council’s risk 
management process.  The internal audit planning methodology is based on risk 
assessments that include the use of the council’s risk registers. 

21



 
Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
 11.7   Robust corporate governance arrangements are essential to the sound 

management of the City Council and the achievement of its objectives as set out 
in the Corporate Plan. 

 
 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
 
 

Background Documents 
 

1. Internal Audit Plan 2012/13 
 

2. Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government, CIPFA (2006) 
 
3. Accounts & Audit Regulations 2011 

    

 

22



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE Agenda Item 54 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 
Month 5 

Date of Meeting: 20 November 2012 

Report of: Acting Director of Finance 

Contact Officer: Name: Nigel Manvell Tel: 29-3104 

 Email: nigel.manvell@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 The Targeted Budget Monitoring (TBM) report is a key component of the 
council’s overall performance monitoring and control framework. This report sets 
out the forecast outturn position as at Month 5 on the council’s revenue and 
capital budgets for the financial year 2012/13.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Committee note the report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 

October 2012 (Appendix 1) and the subsequent recommendations and 
resolution. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 

23



 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1).  
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 
6.1 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Detailed in the Report to the Policy & Resources Committee on 11 October 2012 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5 Report & Appendices: 
 

i. Revenue Budget Performance 

ii. Capital Budget Performance 

iii. Capital Budget Changes (New Schemes) 

iv. Value for Money Programme Performance 

v. Carbon Budgets Update. 

 

24



POLICY & RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE 
 
11 October 2012 

Agenda Item 54 
 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 
Month 5  

Date of Meeting: 11th October 2012 

Report of: Acting Director of Finance 

Contact Officer: Name: Jeff Coates Tel: 29-2364 

 Email: Jeff.coates@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
  

1 SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

1.1 The Targeted Budget Monitoring (TBM) report is a key component of the 
council’s overall performance monitoring and control framework. This report sets 
out the forecast outturn position as at Month 5 on the council’s revenue and 
capital budgets for the financial year 2012/13.  

2 RECOMMENDATIONS: 

2.1 That the Committee note the forecast outturn position for the General Fund, 
which is an underspend of £1.453m. 

2.2 That the Committee note the forecast outturn for the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA), which is an underspend of £0.720m. 

2.3 That the Committee note the forecast outturn position on the capital programme. 

2.4 That the Committee approve the following changes to the capital programme: 

i) The budget re-profiling and budget variations as set out in Appendix 2; 

ii) The carry forward of slippage into the 2013/14 capital programme, to meet 
on-going commitments on these schemes as set out in Appendix 2. 

iii) The new schemes as set out in Appendix 3. 

iv) That the Committee grants delegated authority to the Acting Director of 
Finance to approve, following consultation with the Chair of the Policy & 
Resources Committee, the purchase and installation of new cremators 
and additional mercury abatement plant up to a value of £1.806m 
procured directly through an OJEU compliant route. 

  
2.5  That the Committee note the carbon budgets update as set out in Appendix 5. 
 

25



3 RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

Targeted Budget Management (TBM) Reporting Framework 

3.1 The TBM framework focuses on identifying and managing financial risks on a 
regular basis throughout the year. This is applied at all levels of the organisation 
from Budget Managers through to Policy & Resources Committee. Services 
monitor their TBM position on a monthly or quarterly basis depending on the size, 
complexity or risks apparent within a budget area. TBM therefore operates on a 
risk-based approach, paying particular attention to mitigation of growing cost 
pressures, demands or overspending together with more regular monitoring of 
high risk ‘corporate critical’ areas as detailed below. 

3.2 The TBM report is normally split into 8 sections as follows: 

i) General Fund Revenue Budget Performance 

ii) Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Performance 

iii) Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Performance 

iv) NHS Controlled S75 Partnership Performance 

v) Capital Investment Programme Performance 

vi) Capital Programme Changes 

vii) Implications for the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

viii) Comments of the Director of Finance 
 

General Fund Revenue Budget Performance (Appendix 1) 

3.3 The table below shows the provisional outturn for Council controlled revenue 
budgets within the General Fund. More detailed explanation of the variances can 
be found in Appendix 1. 

 

Forecast      2012/13   Forecast   Forecast  Forecast 

Variance      Budget   Outturn   Variance  Variance 

Month 2    Month 5   Month 5   Month 5  Month 5 

 £'000  Strategic Area   £'000   £'000   £'000  % 

(973) People 128,035 124,526 (3,509) -2.7% 

635 Place 47,038 48,000 962 2.0% 

546 Communities 12,099 12,912 813 6.7% 

200 Resources & Finance 38,831 39,074 243 0.6% 

408 Sub Total 226,003 224,512 (1,491) -0.7% 

114 Corporate Budgets (8,359) (8,321) 38 0.5% 

522 
Total Council 
Controlled Budgets 

217,644 216,191 (1,453) -0.7% 

 

3.4 The General Fund includes Commissioning Units and Service Delivery Units, 
which are organised under the strategic areas of People, Place and 
Communities. These, together with Resource & Finance Units and Corporate 
Budgets make up the General Fund services reported above. 

26



Comparison with Previous Years 

3.5 The chart below shows a comparison of the forecasts reported to Cabinet / Policy 
& Resources for the council controlled budgets for this and the previous three 
financial years. 

 

-4,000

-3,000

-2,000

-1,000

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

F
o
re

c
a
s
t 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £

'0
0
0

Month

TBM Projections Reported to  P & R / Cabinet 2009/10 to 2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

2009/10

2012/13

 

Corporate Critical Budgets 

3.6 There are a number of budgets that carry potentially higher financial risks and 
therefore could have a material impact on the council’s overall financial position. 
These are significant budgets where demand or activity is difficult to predict and 
where relatively small changes in demand can have significant implications for 
the council’s budget strategy. These therefore undergo more frequent and 
detailed analysis.  

 

Forecast   2012/13 Forecast Forecast Forecast 

Variance   Budget Outturn Variance Variance 

Month 2   Month 5 Month 5 Month 5 Month 5 

£'000 Corporate Critical   £'000   £'000   £'000  % 

 (700)  Child Agency & In 
House  

 22,133   19,643   (2,490)  -11.3% 

 (774)  Community Care   43,948   42,904   (1,044)  -2.4% 

 319  Sustainable Transport   (15,073)   (14,766)   307  2.0% 

 359  Temporary 
Accommodation  

 979   1,415   436  44.5% 

  -  Housing Benefits   (752)   (752)    -  0.0% 

 (796)  Total Council 
Controlled  

 51,235   48,444   (2,791)  -5.4% 

 

27



Value for Money (VfM) Programme 

3.7 TBM reports also provide updates on the council’s Value for Money programme. 
The VfM programme contains a number of large, complex projects which include 
additional temporary resources (e.g. Project Managers) to ensure they are 
properly planned and implemented. Projects can have significant financial and 
non-financial targets attached to them and their successful implementation is 
therefore important to the overall financial health of the authority. 

3.8 Some VFM projects carry significant risks and may need specialist advice or 
skills that can be in short supply or they may need to navigate complex 
procurement or legal processes. Therefore, each month the TBM report 
quantifies progress in terms of those savings that have been achieved, those that 
are anticipated to be achieved (i.e. low risk) and those that remain uncertain (i.e. 
higher risk). Those that are uncertain are given greatest attention and details of 
mitigating actions are given wherever possible. 

3.9 The level of ‘uncertain’ savings stands at £0.266m (3.8%) as shown in the chart 
below. Further information about the risks and actions relating to uncertain 
savings is given in Appendix 4. 

        

Value for Money Programme (All Phases) - 2012/13 Monitoring

Achieved, £4.947m, 50%

Uncertain, £0.266m, 3%

Anticipated, £4.662m, 

47%

Original VfM Target 2012/13 =  £6.933m

including a forecast over-

achievement of £2.942m on 

Children's Services VFM

Total potential VfM savings =  £9.875m

 

 

Housing Revenue Account Performance (Appendix 1) 

3.10 The Housing Revenue Account is a separate ring-fenced account which covers 
income and expenditure related to the management and operation of the 
council’s housing stock. Expenditure is generally funded by Council Tenants’ 
rents. The forecast outturn on the HRA is summarised in the table below. More 
detail is provided in Appendix 1. 

 
  

28



Forecast    2012/13   Forecast   Forecast  Variance 

Variance    Budget   Outturn   Variance  Month 5 

Month 2    Month 5   Month 5   Month 5  % 

 £'000   HRA   £'000   £'000   £'000    

 (204)   Expenditure   52,575   51,914   (661)  -1.3% 

  -   Income   (52,975)   (53,034)   (59)  -0.1% 

 (204)   Total   (400)   (1,120)   (720)    

 

NHS Controlled S75 Partnership Performance (Appendix 1) 

3.11 The NHS Trust-managed Section 75 Services represent those services for which 
local NHS Trusts act as the Host Provider under Section 75 Agreements. 
Services are managed by Sussex Partnership Foundation Trust (SPFT) and 
Sussex Community NHS Trust (SCT) and include health and social care services 
for Adult Mental Health, Older People Mental Health, Substance Misuse, 
AIDS/HIV, Intermediate Care and Community Equipment. 

3.12 These partnerships are subject to separate annual risk-sharing arrangements 
and the monitoring of financial performance is the responsibility of the respective 
host NHS Trust provider. Risk-sharing arrangements can result in financial 
implications for the council should a partnership be underspent or overspent at 
year-end and hence the performance of the partnerships is reported under TBM 
throughout the year. 

 

Forecast      2012/13   Forecast   Forecast  Forecast 

Variance      Budget   Outturn   Variance  Variance 

Month 2    Month 5   Month 5   Month 5  Month 5 

 £'000  Section 75   £'000   £'000   £'000  % 

(156) NHS Trust managed 
S75 Services 

13,921 13,847 (74) -0.5% 

 

Capital Programme Performance (Appendix 2) 

3.13 Capital programme performance needs to be looked at from 4 different 
viewpoints as follows: 

i) Forecast Variances: The ‘forecast’ for a scheme or project indicates 
whether it is expected to be break-even, underspent or overspent. 
Information on how forecast overspends will be mitigated is given in 
Appendix 2. If the project is completed, any underspend or overspend will 
be an outturn variance. Generally, only explanations of significant forecast 
variances of £0.050m or greater are given. 

ii) Variations: These are changes to the project budget within year, requiring 
members’ approval, and do not change future year projections. The main 
reason for budget variations is where capital grant or external income 
changes in year. 

iii) Slippage: This indicates whether or not a scheme or project is on 
schedule. Slippage of expenditure from one year into another will 
generally indicate overall delays to a project although some projects can 
‘catch up’ at a later date. Some slippage is normal due to a wide variety of 
factors affecting capital projects however substantial amounts of slippage 

29



across a number of projects could result in the council losing capital 
resources (e.g. capital grants) or being unable to manage the cashflow or 
timing impact of later payments or related borrowing. Wherever possible, 
the council aims to keep slippage below 5% of the total capital 
programme. 

iv) Reprofiling: Reprofiling of expenditure from one year into another is 
requested by project managers when they become aware of changes or 
delays to implementation timetables due to reasons outside of the 
council’s control. Reprofiling requests are checked in advance by Finance 
to ensure there is no impact on the council’s capital resources before they 
are recommended. 

 

3.14 The table below provides a summary of capital programme performance by 
strategic theme and shows that overall the programme is forecast to be on target 
at this relatively early stage. Within Appendix 2 for each budget area there is a 
breakdown of the capital programme by Unit. 

 

Forecast  2012/13 Forecast Forecast Forecast 

Variance   Budget Outturn Variance Outturn 

Month 2  Month 5 Month 5 Month 5 Month 5 

£'000 Capital Budgets  £'000 £'000 £'000 % 

0 People 30,052 30,052 0 0.0% 

0 Place 61,329 61,318 (11) 0.0% 

0 Communities 3,939 3,904 (35) -0.9% 

0 Resources & 
Finance 

12,308 12,308 0 0.0% 

0 Total Capital  107,628 107,582 (46) 0.0% 
 

3.15 Appendix 2 also details any slippage into next year. Project managers have not 
forecast that any schemes will slip at present. 

 
Capital Programme Changes 

3.16 Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 provide details of changes to capital budgets which 
are included in the budget figures above. Appendix 2 details variations, re-
profiled schemes and slippage whilst Appendix 3 provides details of new 
schemes included in the 2012/13 capital programme. Policy & Resources 
Committee’s approval for these changes is required under the council’s Financial 
Regulations.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30



Capital Budget Movement 2012/13 

  Budget 

Summary £'000 

Approved Capital Budget  at Month 2 107,670 

Reported through other Committees 1,332 

Variations to Budget (to be approved – Appendix 2) (2,403) 

Slippage (to be noted – Appendix 2) 0 

New Schemes (to be approved – Appendix 3) 1,029 

Total Capital Budget 107,628 

 

Implications for the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

3.17 The council’s MTFS sets out resource assumptions and projections over a 3-year 
period. It is periodically updated including a major annual update which is 
included in the annual revenue budget report to Policy & Resources Committee 
and Full Council. This section highlights any potential implications for the current 
MTFS arising from in-year TBM monitoring above and details any changes to 
financial risks together with any impact on associated risk provisions, reserves 
and contingencies. Details of Capital Receipts and Collection Fund performance 
are also given below because of their potential impact on future resources. 

3.18 Details of risk provisions currently held are given in the Corporate Budgets 
section of Appendix 1. The current forecast trend indicates that risk provisions 
are unlikely to be required in full during 2012/13. The use of one-off risk 
provisions of £0.500m is assumed in the forecast, with the remaining balance 
contributing to the reported underspend. The full recurrent risk provision of 
£1.000m will be set aside in the Medium Term Financial Strategy to support the 
2013/14 budget strategy and savings proposals. 

Capital Receipts Performance 

3.19 Capital receipts are used to support the capital programme. Any changes to the 
level of receipts during the year will impact on future years’ capital programmes 
and may impact on the level of future investment for corporate funds and projects 
such as the Strategic Investment Fund, Asset Management Fund, ICT Fund and 
the Workstyles VFM projects. For 2012/13 £0.328m capital receipts have been 
received to date in connection with the disposal of 1a Major Close and some 
minor leases. Projected receipts for the year include the Charter Hotel, Kings 
Road and the Ice Rink at Queen’s Square. 

3.20 The Government receive 75% of the proceeds of ‘right to buy sales’; the 
remaining 25% is retained by the Council and used to fund the capital 
programme. The estimated net usable receipts for ‘right to buy’ sales in 2012/13 
is £0.400m and to date £0.091m has been received. 

3.21 The first two tranches of receipts totalling £3.131m from the housing Local 
Delivery Vehicle (LDV) have been received in 2012/13. A total balance of 
£12.904m is expected for the year. The net receipts are ring-fenced to support 
investment in council owned homes. 

31



Collection Fund Performance 

3.22 The collection fund is a separate account for transactions in relation to national 
non domestic rates, council tax and precept demands. Any deficit or surplus 
forecast on the collection fund in relation to council tax is distributed between the 
council, Sussex Police and East Sussex Fire Authority in proportion to the value 
of the respective precept on the collection fund. It is currently forecast to break 
even by 31st March 2013. This forecast includes the improved position of 
£0.162m resulting from a lower than anticipated deficit at 31st March 2012. 

 
Carbon Budget Update 

3.23 A carbon budget has been set for 2012/13 as set out in Appendix 5. This shows 
the current level of spend on energy and the estimated carbon emissions across 
each service area, data has been updated to reflect 2011/12 actual performance. 
It includes a planned 4% reduction in 2012/13. This modest target will be 
challenging to meet on the basis of the current approach to carbon management. 

To make more significant savings in carbon emissions a more radical and longer 
term approach is required. There will therefore be a clear focus placed on 
reducing carbon emissions from buildings through the acceleration of the 
Workstyles programme reducing both the total number of buildings occupied by 
the council and also ensuring improved energy efficiency in the retained 
buildings. £60,000 of One Planet Living reserve has been allocated for 
undertaking detailed energy surveys in our buildings. In addition there will be 
long term investment in more energy efficient street lighting funded from Local 
Transport Plan resources. 

 
The Council’s 2011/12 Carbon Reduction Commitment footprint accounted for 
23,727 tonnes of CO2 from council buildings for which the council purchased 
£0.284m worth of CRC allowances at £12 per tonne. 

 

Comments of the Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 

3.24 This report provides an early forecast for 2012/13 and does not yet include a full 
review of all budgets. There are therefore likely to be further variations to report 
to Policy & Resources Committee at its next meeting in October. Overall the 
forecast on the revenue budget is encouraging given the substantial budget 
savings being implemented but the council will need to maintain its rigorous 
financial management in order to continue to address the ongoing impact of 
reductions in government grant funding over coming years. 

4 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 

4.1 No specific consultation has been undertaken in relation to this report. 

5 FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

Financial Implications: 

5.1 The financial implications are covered in the main body of the report. 

Finance Officer  Consulted:  Jeff Coates Date: 24/09/2012 

 

32



Legal Implications: 

5.2 Decisions taken in relation to the budget must enable the council to observe its 
legal duty to achieve best value by securing continuous improvement in the way 
in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. The council must also comply with its general 
fiduciary duties to its Council Tax payers by acting with financial prudence, and 
bear in mind the reserve powers of the Secretary of State under the Local 
Government Act 1999 to limit Council Tax & precepts. 

Lawyer Consulted: Oliver Dixon Date: 24/09/2012 

Equalities Implications: 

5.3 There are no direct equalities implications arising from this report. 

Sustainability Implications: 

5.4 The Council’s carbon budget update is detailed in Appendix 5 and profiles the 
spend and CO2 carbon footprint for both 2010/11 and 2011/12 across the 
council. The projected carbon budget for 2012/13 is also reported within 
Appendix 5. Paragraph 3.23 provides a progress update in 2012/13 to reduce 
carbon emissions across council services. 

Crime & Disorder Implications:  

5.5 There are no direct crime & disorder implications arising from this report. 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

5.6 The Council’s revenue budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy contain risk 
provisions to accommodate emergency spending, even out cash flow 
movements and/or meet exceptional items. The council maintains a minimum 
working balance of £9.000m to mitigate these risks as recommended by the 
Audit Commission and Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
(CIPFA). The council also maintains other general and earmarked reserves and 
contingencies to cover specific project or contractual risks and commitments. 

Public Health Implications: 

5.7 There are no direct public health implications arising from this report. 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

5.8 The Council’s financial position impacts on levels of Council Tax and service 
levels and therefore has citywide implications. 

6 EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 

6.1 The provisional outturn position on council controlled budgets is an underspend 
of £1.453m. Any underspend at year-end would release one off resources that 
could be used to aid budget planning for 2013/14.  Any overspend at year-end 
would need to be funded from general reserves which would then need to be 
replenished to ensure that the working balance did not remain below £9.000m. 

33



7 REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

7.1 Budget monitoring is a key element of good financial management, which is 
necessary in order for the council to maintain financial stability and operate 
effectively. 

7.2 The capital budget changes are necessary to maintain effective financial 
management.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

Appendices: 

1.  Revenue Budget Performance 

2. Capital Budget Performance 

3. Capital Budget Changes (New Schemes) 

4. Value for Money Programme Performance 

5. Carbon Budgets Update. 

Documents in Members’ Rooms: 

None. 

Background Documents 

None. 

34



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

P
e

o
p

le
 -

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
B

u
d

g
e

t 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 

£
'0

0
0

 
U

n
it

 
£

'0
0
0

 
£

'0
0
0

 
£

'0
0
0

 
%

 

(5
3

5
) 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 Y
o

u
th

 &
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 

2
2

,4
3

5
 

1
9

,8
1

2
 

(2
,6

2
3

) 
-1

1
.7

%
 

(1
1

0
) 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

5
,2

5
3

 
5

,1
3
8

 
(1

1
5

) 
-2

.2
%

 

1
6

5
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

a
m

ili
e

s
 

3
5

,1
5

0
 

3
5

,3
6

4
 

2
1

4
 

0
.6

%
 

(4
8

0
) 

T
o
ta

l 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

6
2

,8
3

8
 

6
0

,3
1

4
 

(2
,5

2
4

) 
-4

.0
%

 

(4
1

) 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
- 

P
e

o
p

le
 

1
,9

5
6

 
1

,9
2
4

 
(3

2
) 

-1
.6

%
 

(7
7

4
) 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 A
d

u
lt
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
4

9
,4

9
0

 
4

8
,4

2
7

 
(1

,0
6

3
) 

-2
.1

%
 

3
2

2
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 A
d

u
lt
s
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

1
3

,7
5

1
 

1
3

,8
6

1
 

1
1

0
 

0
.8

%
 

(4
9

3
) 

T
o
ta

l 
A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

6
5

,1
9

7
 

6
4

,2
1

2
 

(9
8

5
) 

-1
.5

%
 

(9
7

3
) 

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
v
e

n
u
e

 -
 P

e
o

p
le

 
1

2
8

,0
3

5
 

1
2

4
,5

2
6

 
(3

,5
0

9
) 

-2
.7

%
 

  

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 C

h
il
d

re
n

, 
Y

o
u

th
 &

 F
a

m
il

ie
s

 

(2
,5

7
2

) 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
- 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 

T
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
2

5
.0

3
 F

T
E

) 
is

 b
ro

k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 a

s
 2

0
.7

7
 

F
T

E
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 
h

o
m

e
s
),

 3
.9

0
 F

T
E

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
0

.3
6

 F
T

E
 

fa
m

ily
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 0

.0
0

 F
T

E
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 r
e

h
a

b
ili

ta
ti
o

n
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

llo
w

s
 f

o
r 

2
5

.4
0

 F
T

E
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
9

.0
0

 F
T

E
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
1

.5
0
 F

T
E

 f
a
m

ily
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d
 0

.6
0

 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
in

g
 i
n

 t
o

ta
l,
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 w

it
h

in
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u

d
g
e

ts
. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 V

a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

M
o

n
e

y
 (

V
F

M
) 

p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
n
d

 i
n

 I
F

A
s
. 
T

h
e

 p
la

n
 

fo
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

in
g
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 
s
tr

e
a

m
lin

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

•
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
 a

 t
ie

re
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

35



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

F
T

E
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u

s
e
 r

e
h

a
b
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 
u

n
p

re
c
e

d
e
n

te
d

ly
 l
o

w
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
k
n

o
w

n
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
is

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

. 
It

 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 1

1
.4

7
 F

T
E

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

te
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
c
re

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d

 o
f 

£
1

.4
5
1

m
. 

 
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
fo

s
te

r 
a

g
e
n

c
y
 (

IF
A

) 
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

ts
, 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 i
n
 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
y
e

a
rs

, 
h

a
s
 b

e
g
u

n
 t
o

 f
a

ll.
 D

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 1

6
4

.5
2

 F
T

E
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

 
1

3
.5

%
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
(f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 
2

3
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
).

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 

1
9

1
.4

1
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 F

T
E

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
6
.5

0
 F

T
E

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n

ts
 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.8
1

2
m

. 
 T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 1

6
.2

7
 F

T
E

 w
it
h

 a
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 u
n

it
 

c
o

s
t 

o
f 

£
2
,3

5
6

.4
3

. 
T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 

1
.3

4
 F

T
E

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 l
e

v
e

l.
 T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 
w

e
e

k
ly

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

s
e
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
s
 £

4
8

.6
4

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

te
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 t

w
o

 f
a

c
to

rs
 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.0
1
8
m

 o
n

 r
e

s
p

it
e

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
re

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 a
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£
0

.1
3

7
m

. 
 It

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 0
.7

5
 

F
T

E
 s

e
c
u

re
 (

w
e

lf
a

re
) 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n
d

 0
.5

3
 F

T
E

 
s
e

c
u

re
 (

ju
s
ti
c
e

) 
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

. 
T

h
e

 

c
h

ild
re

n
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 c
o

s
t 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

  

•
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

e
x
p

e
rt

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 c
a

re
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g
s
, 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
e

a
rl
y
 

p
e

rm
a

n
e
n

c
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
in

 h
o

u
s
e

 f
o
s
te

r 
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 t

ie
r 

1
 c

a
re

. 

•
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
v
e

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 r
e

-s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 

o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 

U
n

it
 

36



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
a

llo
w

s
 f

o
r 

1
.2

5
 F

T
E

 w
e

lf
a

re
 a

n
d
 0

.7
5

 F
T

E
 

ju
s
ti
c
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

n
e

 c
h

ild
 i
n

 a
 s

e
c
u

re
 (

w
e

lf
a

re
) 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 o

n
e
 i
n

 a
 s

e
c
u

re
 (

c
ri
m

in
a

l)
 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

re
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
7

2
m

 
 In

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
p

ri
c
e

 r
is

e
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
p

ro
v
id

e
r 

re
te

n
d
e

ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

In
it
ia

l 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 s

u
g
g
e

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 m
a

y
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

in
fl
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 n

e
w

 t
e
n

d
e

re
d

 p
ri
c
e

s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e
 

ro
b

u
s
t 

te
n
d

e
ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 e
n

d
e

a
v
o

u
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e

, 
w

h
e

re
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l,
 a

n
y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 t
e

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
. 

If
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 t
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r.

 

(5
1

) 
O

th
e

r 
M

in
o

r 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

(1
1

0
) 

H
o

m
e

 t
o

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
5
0

m
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 
th

e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

b
e

in
g
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 m
o

re
 f
a

v
o

u
ra

b
le

 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
n

e
g
o

ti
a

te
d

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

. 
T

h
is

 
is

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£
0

.0
4

0
m

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 s
a

v
in

g
 i
n

 d
e

n
o

m
in

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 n

o
t 
n

o
w

 a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 a
s
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 n

o
w

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

2
. 

 

37



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

(5
) 

O
th

e
r 

M
in

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

s
 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 &

 F
a

m
il
ie

s
 

2
7

0
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 
T

e
a

m
s
 

T
h
e

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 T
e

a
m

s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 b

y
 £

0
.2

7
0

m
 i
n

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n

tl
y
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 /
 o

ff
ic

e
 m

o
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
c
o

s
ts

. 

C
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

 
m

o
n
th

s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 c
o

s
ts

 o
r 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 
m

it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
b

a
c
k
 i
n

 
b

a
la

n
c
e

 w
h

e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
. 

1
5

0
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 t
h

e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 A
d

m
in

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 b
ra

n
c
h

. 
T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o
f 

£
0

.6
9

7
m

 w
a

s
 s

u
b

s
e
q
u

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 t

o
 £

0
.4

4
7
m

 
b

u
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
S

e
v
e

ra
n

c
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 u
s
e
, 

w
h

e
re

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

 o
f 

th
e

 D
e
d

ic
a

te
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

S
G

) 
h

a
v
e

 l
e
ft

 a
 

s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

s
ti
ll 

to
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
5
0

m
. 

V
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

is
e

d
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

is
 

s
a

v
in

g
 a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h
e

y
 a

ri
s
e

. 

(1
5

2
) 

C
a

re
 L

e
a

v
e

rs
 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
e

 U
n

a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 A
s
y
lu

m
 S

e
e

k
in

g
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 t

e
a

m
 a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 m

in
im

a
l 
g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 e
x
 

a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e

k
e

rs
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
n

 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
5
0
m

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

£
0

.0
5

0
m

 b
a

c
k
d
a

te
d

 g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 U

K
 B

o
a

rd
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
y
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 d

is
p

u
te

d
 

c
a

s
e

s
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

. 
T

h
is

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 
o
ff

-s
e

t 
b

y
 a

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.0

4
8

m
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 c

a
re

 
le

a
v
e

rs
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

f 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

0
-

1
5

 i
n

 t
h

is
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
5

2
m

. 

(7
0

) 
L

e
g
a

l 
F

e
e

s
 

L
e

g
a

l 
fe

e
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
o

 b
e

 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
t.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
£
0

.0
3
7

m
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

tl
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 
s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

 

38



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

£
0

.0
3

3
m

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f
o

r 
le

g
a

l/
c
o

u
rt

 f
e

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 d

u
e

 
to

 t
h
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 V
F

M
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

u
ti
lis

e
 t

h
e

 C
le

rm
o
n

t 
C

P
U

 t
e

a
m

 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 t
h
e

s
e

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
. 

(6
8

) 
A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

A
d

o
p
ti
o

n
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 

£
0

.0
6

8
m

 b
e

lo
w

 b
u

d
g
e

te
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

 

8
2

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
- 

In
 

H
o

u
s
e

 F
o

s
te

r 
P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£
0

.0
8

2
m

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
G

u
a

rd
ia

n
s
h

ip
 o

rd
e

rs
 w

h
e

re
 6

6
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

e
re

 b
u

d
g
e

te
d
 f

o
r 

b
u

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 7
2

. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 t
ie

re
d

 a
p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
im

 o
f 

re
d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
. 

 

2
 

O
th

e
r 

M
in

o
r 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 v

a
ri
a
n

c
e

s
 

 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 P

e
o

p
le

 

(3
2

) 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
–

 P
e
o

p
le

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

u
n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
 P

C
T

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 g

ra
n

ts
. 

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 A

d
u

lt
s

 A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

S
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d
 

o
f 

£
1

.0
6

3
m

 a
t 
M

o
n

th
 5

 (
re

p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 1

.7
%

 o
f 

th
e

 
n

e
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t)
, 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.2
8

9
m

 s
in

c
e

 M
o

n
th

 2
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
 f

u
ll,

 a
lb

e
it
 t
h

a
t 

s
o

m
e

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 o

ff
s
e
t 

th
o

s
e

 
a

re
a

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 p

ro
v
in

g
 m

o
re

 o
f 

a
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e

re
 

is
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
£
0

.4
0

0
m

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

e
x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 i
n

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r.

  
T

h
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 i
s
 s

p
lit

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

s
 f
o

llo
w

s
: 

  

 

(6
5

9
) 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
- 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 
o
f 

£
0

.6
5

9
m

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
  

39



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

C
a

re
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
(O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

) 

tr
e

n
d

s
 s

e
e

n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
s
 u

p
o

n
 t
h

e
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
re

-a
b

le
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 
d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 
T

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 s
in

c
e
 M

o
n
th

 2
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 E

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 C

a
re

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 S

y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
h

o
m

e
c
a

re
. 

(5
2

5
) 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
- 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

C
a

re
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
(L

e
a

rn
in

g
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
) 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 
o
f 

£
0

.5
2

5
m

 d
u

e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 t
h

e
 f
u

ll 
y
e

a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 

o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1

/1
2
 a

n
d
 

o
v
e

r-
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 p

la
n

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 T
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
in

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d
 s

in
c
e

 M
o

n
th

 2
 o

f 
£

0
.2

9
6
m

 
m

a
in

ly
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 o
n

e
 y

o
u

n
g
e

r 
p
e

rs
o

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

c
o

m
e
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 w

h
o

 h
a

s
 

b
e

c
o
m

e
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 N
H

S
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 

a
 r

is
k
 t

h
is

 c
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

d
 a

t 
a

 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
. 

  

1
4

0
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
C

ri
ti
c
a

l 
- 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

C
a

re
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
- 

 
U

n
d

e
r 

6
5

's
 

U
n

d
e

r 
6
5

's
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
4

0
m

. 
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
. 

O
ff

s
e

t 
b

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
o

th
e

r 
c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

(1
9

) 
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 &

 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

T
e
a

m
s
 

M
in

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
. 

  

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 A

d
u

lt
s

 P
ro

v
id

e
r 

1
1

0
  

  
P

ro
v
id

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

f 
£

0
.1

1
0
m

 a
t 

M
o

n
th

 5
 (

re
p

re
s
e
n

ti
n

g
 0

.8
%

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e
t 

b
u

d
g
e

t)
. 
T

h
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
b

u
d
g
e

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 (
£

0
.3

1
1
m

) 
a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
fe

rm
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 a

t 
th

e
 

J
u

n
e

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

 &
 H

e
a

lt
h

 

T
h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
  

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

t 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
A

d
u

lt
 C

a
re

 &
 H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

40



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
; 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

a
s
 p

u
t 

to
 t

h
e

 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
. 

 
 

41



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

P
la

c
e

 -
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

  
 F

o
re

c
a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 

 O
u

tt
u

rn
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 U

n
it

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

C
it
y
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 &

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

3
,4

1
2

 
3

,4
9
2

 
8

0
 

2
.3

%
 

3
3

9
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 C
it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

2
1

,9
2

8
 

2
2

,3
0

2
 

3
7

4
 

1
.7

%
 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 u

n
it
 -

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 &

 P
u

b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 
5

,4
9
3

 
5

,6
0
2

 
1

0
9

 
2

.0
%

 

3
3

9
 

T
o
ta

l 
C

it
y
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 &

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

3
0

,8
3

3
 

3
1

,3
9

6
 

5
6

3
 

1
.8

%
 

2
9

6
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 

1
5

,6
9

3
 

1
6

,0
9

2
 

3
9

9
 

2
.5

%
 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 

5
1

2
 

5
1

2
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

2
9

6
 

T
o
ta

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

1
6

,2
0

5
 

1
6

,6
0

4
 

3
9

9
 

2
.5

%
 

6
3

5
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 -

 P
la

c
e

 
4

7
,0

3
8

 
4

8
,0

0
0

 
9

6
2

 
2

.0
%

 

 
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

K
e

y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
: 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 C

it
y
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 &

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

8
0

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 
E

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 T
e

a
m

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

b
u

d
g
e

t.
  

E
ff

o
rt

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 t
o

 l
e

g
it
im

a
te

ly
 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
 a

s
 m

u
c
h

 s
ta

ff
 t

im
e

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 
tr

y
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

n
 n

o
n

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
s
u

p
p

lie
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 C

it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

3
0

7
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
C

ri
ti
c
a

l 
- 

P
a

rk
in

g
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

o
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 
p

a
y
 

a
n

d
 d

is
p

la
y
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 l
e
a
d

in
g
 t

o
 a

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
o
f 

£
0

.7
0

0
m

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 
c
le

a
r 

p
a

tt
e

rn
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
h

a
v
in

g
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e
 o

n
-s

tr
e

e
t 

p
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
. 

T
h
e

 L
a

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 L
o

n
d
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 o
ff

 s
tr

e
e
t 

c
a

r 
p
a

rk
s
 

a
re

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 o

f 
£

0
.2

3
5
m

. 
T

ra
fa

lg
a

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d
 R

e
g
e

n
c
y
 S

q
u

a
re

 
w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

b
u

d
g
e

ts
 b

y
 £

0
.0

4
3
m

 o
w

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 

42



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 a

 m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 a

w
a

y
 f

ro
m

 c
a

rs
 t
o

 b
u

s
 a

n
d

 
c
y
c
le

 u
s
e

, 
a

n
d

 c
a

r 
u

s
e
rs

 s
w

it
c
h

in
g
 f

ro
m

 t
w

o
 h

o
u

r 
s
ta

y
s
 t

o
 o

n
e

 h
o

u
r 

s
ta

y
s
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 
to

 t
h

is
. 

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 

N
C

P
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
w

o
 l
e

a
s
e
d

 c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 l
e
a

d
 t

o
 

a
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.0

6
0

m
. 

A
n

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 R
e

g
e

n
c
y
 S

q
u

a
re

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 b

y
 £

0
.1

1
5
m

, 
a

n
d

 a
 

s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

 a
t 

th
e

 H
R

A
 H

ig
h

 
S

tr
e

e
t 

c
a

r 
p

a
rk

 w
ill

 c
a

u
s
e

 a
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

f 
£
0

.0
1
0

m
. 
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 y
e

a
r.

 E
ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
ls

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 

le
a

d
 t
o

 e
x
p

e
n
d

it
u

re
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£

0
.1

5
0

m
. 
T

h
e
 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 
fo

r 
p
e

rm
it
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 n

o
w

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

 s
u

rp
lu

s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

b
u
d

g
e

t 
o
f 

£
0

.1
5

0
m

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 w
ill

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 

o
ff

s
e

t 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

5
1

 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 s

ta
ff

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e

t,
 a

n
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
e

rm
it
 s

c
h
e

m
e
 

fo
r 

ro
a

d
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 c
lo

s
u

re
s
. 

E
ff

o
rt

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 t
ry

 a
n

d
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 

w
h

e
re

 u
n

d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

o
ff

s
e

t 
th

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 

1
6

 
C

it
y
 P

a
rk

s
 

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

in
c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 g

ro
u

n
d

s
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
. 

E
ff

o
rt

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r,

 t
o

 t
ry

 a
n

d
 b

ri
n

g
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 

b
re

a
k
e

v
e

n
. 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 P
u

b
li

c
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 

9
6

 
P

u
b

lic
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

lic
e
n

s
e

 f
e

e
 

in
c
o

m
e

 (
£

0
.0

4
5

m
),

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 (
£

0
.0

3
6

m
),

 a
n

d
 

fe
e

s
 f
o

r 
a

n
im

a
l 
w

e
lf
a

re
 a

n
d
 k

e
n
n

e
lli

n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 
(£

0
.0

1
5
m

).
  

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f
o

re
c
a

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

c
o

p
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 

b
a

c
k
 t
o

 b
re

a
k
e

v
e

n
. 

1
3

 
E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
M

in
o

r 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
. 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 f
o

re
c
a

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 i
s
 s

c
o

p
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 

b
a

c
k
 t
o

 a
 b

re
a

k
e

v
e

n
 o

n
e

. 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

4
3

6
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
C

ri
ti
c
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
- 

 
T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 

A
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
M

o
n

th
 2

, 
th

e
 m

a
in

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 

T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 B

e
d

 a
n

d
 B

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

s
p
o

t 
p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 k
n
o

w
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 a

re
a

 t
h
a

t 
n
e

e
d

s
 

to
 b

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 s
e
tt

in
g
 t

h
e

 

43



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 

&
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
  

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

2
0

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
lie

n
ts

. 
In

 a
d
d

it
io

n
, 
b

e
c
a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 
le

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
o

 k
e

e
p
 p

a
c
e
 

w
it
h

 d
e

m
a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 

to
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 t
h

is
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y
 t
h

e
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 

2
0

1
3

/1
4
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 b
u

d
g
e

t.
 M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 

a
tt

e
m

p
t 
to

 a
c
q
u

ir
e

 m
o

re
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
th

e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e

in
g
 p

u
t 
to

g
e

th
e

r.
 

4
8

  
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

T
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n

 h
o

s
te

ls
 

h
a

s
 m

e
a
n

t 
th

a
t 
m

o
re

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o

p
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
. 
 E

x
tr

a
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 3

 k
e

y
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
fo

r 
6

 m
o
n

th
s
 (

1
 a

t 
e

a
c
h

 h
o

s
te

l)
. 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 r

e
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 a
t 

W
e
s
t 
P

ie
r 

H
o

s
te

l.
  

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d
s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 o
ff

s
e

t 
b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 7

 
e

x
tr

a
 r

o
o

m
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 h

o
s
te

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 a

s
 m

e
n

ti
o

n
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

(1
1

5
) 

 
L

e
a
d

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
T

h
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
M

o
n

th
 2

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
o

v
e

r-
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
&

 A
d

m
in

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

b
u
d

g
e

te
d

 p
e

n
s
io

n
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

s
. 

 T
h

is
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 o
ff

s
e

t 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
. 

  

3
0

  
O

th
e

r 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
- 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

e
a
m

 b
a

s
e
d

 o
n

 s
p
e

n
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
T

h
is

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

t 
M

o
n

th
 2

. 
P

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 b
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 T
h

e
 s

lig
h

t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 i
n

 H
o
u

s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u

e
 t
o

 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e

s
s
 c

o
v
e

r.
 

C
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 a

n
d

 e
ff

o
rt

s
 m

a
d

e
 

to
 b

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
b

a
c
k
 i
n

 l
in

e
 

 

44



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 -

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

  
 F

o
re

c
a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 

 O
u

tt
u

rn
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  

 £
'0

0
0

  
U

n
it

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 &

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

3
,3

8
8

 
3

,4
3
8

 
5

0
 

1
.5

%
 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

2
,3

5
3

 
2

,5
3
8

 
1

8
5

 
7

.9
%

 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

S
p

o
rt

s
 &

 L
e

is
u

re
 

1
,1

5
7

 
1

,1
5
7

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r 
- 

C
u

lt
u

re
 

1
,9

7
0

 
2

,0
0
0

 
3

0
 

1
.5

%
 

5
4

6
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 -

 T
o

u
ri
s
m

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 
3

,2
3
1

 
3

,7
7
9

 
5

4
8

 
1

7
.0

%
 

5
4

6
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

1
2

,0
9

9
 

1
2

,9
1

2
 

8
1

3
 

6
.7

%
 

 E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

 &
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s
 

5
0

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
T

h
e

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 i
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p
e

c
t 
o
f 

m
a

tc
h

-f
u

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

c
to

r 
F

o
ru

m
 l
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

"T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
" 

T
h
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 o
ff

s
e

t 
th

is
 b

y
 u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

. 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

1
8

5
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

T
h
e

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
s
 d

u
e

  
to

 t
h
e

 
u

n
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

£
0

.0
7

9
m

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 d
ru

g
s
 

a
n

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

b
u

d
g
e

ta
ry

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

 
o

p
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

re
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n
d

 C
ri
m

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 h

a
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
o
re

c
a

s
t.

 

U
rg

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 t
o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

o
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

d
d

it
o

n
a

l 
g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

–
 S

p
o

rt
s

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 

0
 

S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

L
e

is
u

re
 

T
h
e

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 L
e

is
u

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

re
a

k
-e

v
e

n
. 

E
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 w

o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e
n

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
a

t 
S

a
lt
d

e
a
n

 L
id

o
 u

n
d
e

r 
U

rg
e

n
c
y
 P

o
w

e
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 

 

45



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 r

is
k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
s
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
. 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 L

id
o
. 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
C

u
lt

u
re

 

3
0

 
B

ri
g
h

to
n

 D
o
m

e
 

c
lie

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 
It

 w
a

s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
tu

a
l 
p

a
y
m

e
n

t 
to

 
th

e
 D

o
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 b
u
t 

th
is

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

 i
ts

 e
n

ti
re

ty
. 

 

N
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

th
e

 i
n
fl
a

ti
o

n
a

ry
 c

la
u

s
e

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

. 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 T

o
u

ri
s

m
 &

 L
e

is
u

re
 

4
6

0
 

V
e

n
u
e

s
 

T
h
e

 V
e

n
u
e

s
 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 

s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 i
s
s
u
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
H

o
lid

a
y
 O

n
 I

c
e

 f
o

r 
J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
3
 

(£
0

.1
8
0
m

),
 r

e
a

lis
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

im
p

a
c
t 
o
f 

lo
w

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
b
o

o
k
in

g
s
 m

a
d
e

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 v
e

n
u
e

 w
h

e
n

 i
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
u

c
h

 a
n
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
it
io

n
 f
o

r 
e

x
h

ib
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
o
o

k
e

rs
 

(£
0

.1
4
4
m

),
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
te

rt
a

in
m

e
n

ts
 (

£
0

.1
2
2

m
) 

a
n

d
 

a
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

f 
£

0
.0

1
4

m
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
ro

o
m

s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 a

t 
th

e
 H

o
v
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
. 

 

A
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
b

o
o

k
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 
fu

tu
re

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 
th

is
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

e
 o

n
e

 w
e

e
k
 H

o
lid

a
y
 o

n
 

Ic
e

 S
h
o

w
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 

th
re

e
 w

e
e

k
 r

u
n
 o

f 
S

ta
rl
ig

h
t 

E
x
p

re
s
s
. 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 b
o

o
k
in

g
s
 s

in
c
e

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 

o
f 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

B
ri
g
h

to
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

fu
tu

re
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

£
1

8
0

m
, 
fa

r 
e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 a

n
y
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

b
o

o
k
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 f
o

r 
b

o
o

k
in

g
s
 

s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
2

5
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

n
 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
fu

tu
re

 
ta

rg
e

ts
. 

7
3

 
R

o
y
a

l 
P

a
v
ili

o
n

 
a

n
d

 M
u

s
e

u
m

s
 

T
h
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 £

0
.0

4
0
m

 d
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

n
e

w
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d

 £
0
.1

4
0

m
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 a

c
ro

s
s
 r

e
ta

il,
 b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
g
u

re
s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 

v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
0

.0
4

0
m

 a
n
d

 a
 n

e
t 

s
u

rp
lu

s
 o

f 
£

0
.0

6
7

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e
. 

  

W
o
rk

 o
n

 n
e

w
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 u
n

io
n

s
 

is
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 a

c
ro

s
s
 r

e
ta

il.
 I
n

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
, 

b
y
 t

h
is

 p
o

in
t 

in
 t

h
e

 
y
e

a
r 

th
e

 m
a

jo
r 

e
x
h

ib
it
io

n
 h

a
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 

p
la

c
e

. 
T

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

it
 h

a
s
 o

n
ly

 j
u

s
t 

o
p

e
n

e
d

 a
n
d

 i
t 

is
 h

o
p
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

46



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

p
ro

d
u

c
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f
o

r 
B

ib
a

 w
ill

 s
e

ll 
w

e
ll,

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 
p

re
d

ic
t 

w
it
h

 c
e

rt
a

in
ty

 w
h

a
t 

in
c
o

m
e

 
le

v
e

ls
 o

n
 s

e
c
o
n

d
a

ry
 s

p
e

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

. 
T

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
e
d

 e
n
e

rg
y
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 e
x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
p

e
n

d
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

s
a

g
e

. 

1
5

 
T

o
u

ri
s
m

 &
 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

T
h
e

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 T

o
u

ri
s
m

 a
n

d
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 i
s
 d

u
e

 
m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

£
0

.0
1

0
m

 w
it
h

in
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
£

0
.0

1
0
m

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
m

in
o

r 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
. 
T

h
e

s
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

In
 a

ll 
a

re
a

s
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a

n
d

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

in
c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n

 
to

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

c
o

s
ts

. 
 

47



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 F

in
a

n
c
e
 -

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

  
 F

o
re

c
a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 

 O
u

tt
u

rn
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 U

n
it

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

%
 

2
8

 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n

it
 -

 C
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

1
3

,3
4

9
 

1
3

,4
0

9
 

6
0

 
0

.4
%

 

0
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

S
u

b
s
id

y
 

(7
5

2
) 

(7
5

2
) 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

1
7

2
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

1
9

,1
2

4
 

1
9

,3
2

4
 

2
0

0
 

1
.0

%
 

0
 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
5

,9
6
6

 
5

,9
3
6

 
(3

0
) 

-0
.5

%
 

0
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 L
e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 T

e
a

m
 

1
,1

4
4

 
1

,1
5
7

 
1

3
 

1
.1

%
 

2
0

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 -

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 &
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 

3
8

,8
3

1
 

3
9

,0
7

4
 

2
4

3
 

0
.6

%
 

 E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 C

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

6
0

 
C

it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 d

u
e
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 i
n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

 l
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 
 

P
re

s
s
u

re
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 t

o
 

m
in

im
is

e
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

 c
o
s
ts

. 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

6
9

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 f
o

re
c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.0

6
9
m

 i
n

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
. 
T

h
is

 a
s
s
u
m

e
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£
0

.0
3

9
m

 m
a

d
e

 f
ro

m
 c

e
a

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

C
it
y
 N

e
w

s
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

£
0

.0
4

0
m

 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

s
ta

ff
in

g
. 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

£
0
.1

5
0

m
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 
fr

o
m

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g
 a

n
d

 

S
a

v
in

g
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
o

lid
a
ti
n

g
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 

c
o

u
n

c
il-

w
id

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

a
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 a

t 
£

2
.9

0
0
m

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
g
re

a
te

r 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

v
a

lu
e

-f
o

r-
m

o
n

e
y
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

v
e

n
u
e
 

48



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

s
p

o
n

s
o

rs
h

ip
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

o
f 

£
0

.0
2

5
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 f
ro

m
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c
lie

n
ts

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

v
e

n
u
e

 o
f 

£
0

.0
8
0

m
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

ri
s
k
s
 

a
tt

a
c
h

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

is
 f
o

re
c
a
s
t.

 T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 t
e

n
d

e
rs

, 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 
b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 

c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
. 

in
c
o

m
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

x
p

lo
re

d
 w

h
e

re
v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

3
9

  
H

u
m

a
n

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

H
u

m
a
n

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

re
 f

o
re

c
a

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 

o
f 

£
0

.0
3

9
m

. 
 T

h
e

 H
u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 

T
h

in
k
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
; 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

fu
n

d
 w

ill
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
d

ir
e

c
t 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 
fu

tu
re

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

in
g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

It
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 o

ff
s
e
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
. 

1
1

5
  

IC
T

 
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
u
p

g
ra

d
in

g
 o

f 
te

le
p
h

o
n

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

(£
0

.0
6
0
m

) 
a

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

V
F

M
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 i
n

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

. 
O

th
e

r 
ri
s
k
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

o
s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

re
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t,

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 (
£
0

.0
6

8
m

),
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
. 

  

T
h

is
 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 I

C
T

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
is

 
u

n
d
e

r 
p

re
s
s
u

re
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 c

o
s
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 t

o
 

h
e

lp
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

(1
6

) 
 

L
e

g
a

l 
&

 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

M
in

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 

  

(7
) 

 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 &

 
A

n
a

ly
s
is

 

M
in

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 

  

49



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 

(3
0

) 
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 c
o
v
e

r 
c
o

s
ts

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 
a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 

 

 

 

50



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

d
g

e
ts

 -
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

  
 F

o
re

c
a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 

 O
u

tt
u

rn
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 U

n
it

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

%
 

(4
2

5
) 

B
u

lk
 I

n
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 P

re
m

ia
 

3
,4

1
9

 
3

,0
8
4

 
(3

3
5

) 
-9

.8
%

 

0
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 F

a
re

s
 

9
,6

9
6

 
9

,7
4
6

 
5

0
 

0
.5

%
 

3
5

0
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a
n

c
in

g
 C

o
s
ts

 
8

,8
6
2

 
9

,2
1
2

 
3

5
0

 
3

.9
%

 

0
 

L
e

v
ie

s
 &

 P
re

c
e
p

ts
 

1
6

7
 

1
6

7
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

2
0

5
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 V
fM

 S
a

v
in

g
s
 

(5
3

1
) 

(3
2

6
) 

2
0

5
 

3
8

.6
%

 

0
 

R
is

k
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 

3
,3

6
3

 
3

,1
4
7

 
(2

1
6

) 
-6

.4
%

 

(1
6

) 
O

th
e

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

te
m

s
 

(3
3

,3
3
5

) 
(3

3
,3

5
1

) 
(1

6
) 

0
.0

%
 

1
1

4
 

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
v
e

n
u
e

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
 

(8
,3

5
9

) 
(8

,3
2

1
) 

3
8

 
0

.5
%

 
 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

(O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

B
u

lk
 I

n
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 P

re
m

ia
 

(4
2

5
) 

B
u

lk
 I

n
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

P
re

m
ia

 
T

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 £

0
.4

1
0
m

 t
o

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 
fo

re
c
a

s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 p
re

m
iu

m
 r

a
te

s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

re
te

n
d
e

ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 o

f 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

rt
fo

lio
 f

ro
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

. 
In

 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 i
t 

w
a

s
 d

e
c
id

e
d

 t
o

 d
e
fe

r 
th

e
 

re
te

n
d
e

ri
n

g
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 i
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
o

v
e

r 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
re

te
n

d
e

re
d

 a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
3

. 
N

e
g
o

ti
a

ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 
e

x
te

n
d

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

s
u

re
rs

 w
e

re
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 w
it
h

 
m

in
im

a
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 r

a
te

s
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 t

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 h
a

s
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 £

0
.0

9
0

m
 s

in
c
e

 M
o

n
th

 2
. 
T

h
is

 r
e

la
te

s
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

tw
o

 s
lip

 /
 t

ri
p

 c
la

im
s
 (

£
0

.0
5

0
m

) 
a

n
d

 t
h
e

 

 

51



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

(O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

lit
ig

a
te

d
 c

la
im

s
, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 l
e

g
a

l 
fe

e
s
 

(£
0

.0
4
0
m

).
 I

t 
is

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
lit

ig
a

te
d

 c
la

im
s
 f

ro
m

 "
n
o

 w
in

 n
o

 f
e
e

" 
la

w
y
e

rs
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

 u
p

 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 w
h

e
n

 t
h
e

 l
a

w
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
ill

 m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

la
w

y
e

rs
 w

ill
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 c

la
im

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 f
e

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l
o

s
in

g
 s

id
e

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
n

s
te

a
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
 

s
h

a
re

 o
f 

a
n

y
 d

a
m

a
g
e

s
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

h
o

p
e

s
 t

h
e

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
ill

 a
c
t 

a
s
 a

 d
is

in
c
e

n
ti
v
e

 t
o

 a
n

y
o

n
e

 b
ri
n

g
in

g
 s

p
u

ri
o

u
s
 

c
a

s
e

s
. 

C
o

n
c

e
s

s
io

n
a

ry
 F

a
re

s
 

5
0

 
C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 

F
a

re
s
 

A
 s

m
a

ll 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
fo

r 
2
0

1
2
/1

3
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
t 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 j
o
u

rn
e

y
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 
to

 t
h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

te
d

 f
ix

e
d

 p
ri
c
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.
 

 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 C

o
s

ts
 

3
5

0
 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a
n

c
in

g
 

C
o

s
ts

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 £

0
.3

5
0
m

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 f

in
a

n
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 d
u
e

 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 H

R
A

 b
o

rr
o
w

in
g
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

 c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 t

im
e

. 
W

it
h

 e
ff

e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 1
s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

 
H

R
A

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
le

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
im

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 t
h

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 
 

W
h
e
re

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
, 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

s
 

o
n

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
u

d
g
e

ts
 w

ill
 

b
e

 u
s
e

d
 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h

is
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
, 
n

o
ta

b
ly

 B
u

lk
 

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 P
re

m
ia

. 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 V
F

M
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 

2
0

5
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 V
F

M
 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 
A

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

V
F

M
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 r
e

la
te

 t
o
 c

o
u
n

c
il-

w
id

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 m

a
n

y
, 

if
 n

o
t 
a

ll,
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
s
. 
T

h
e

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
h
o

w
n

 u
n

d
e

r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

/o
r 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

. 
If

 a
ll 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
, 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 V
F

M
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
b
o

v
e

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
o

 z
e

ro
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

F
u

ll 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
V

F
M

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 

g
iv

e
n

 i
n

 A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 4

. 

R
is

k
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 

(2
1

6
) 

R
is

k
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 &

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 o
n
e

-o
ff

 r
is

k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

£
1

.0
0

0
m

 a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 n

o
w

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

 

52



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

(O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 o
n

ly
) 

c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 

th
a

t 
£

0
.2

1
6

m
 o

f 
th

is
 c

a
n

 b
e
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
o

s
it
io

n
. 

 I
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 £

0
.7

8
4

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
: 

•
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 a
t 

S
a

lt
d

e
a

n
 L

id
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 u
n
d

e
r 

u
rg

e
n

c
y
 p

o
w

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 t
o

ta
ls

 £
0

.1
3

0
m

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 £
0

.0
3

0
m

 
re

la
te

s
 t
o

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 i
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 A
p
p

e
n
d

ix
 3

; 

•
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r’
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 (

IC
O

) 
  

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
; 

•
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
le

g
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
in

te
lle

c
tu

a
l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 r

ig
h

ts
; 

•
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
s
 r

o
u

te
s
; 

 

•
 

o
th

e
r 

o
n

e
-o

ff
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

ig
h

t 
a

ri
s
e

 d
u

ri
n
g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r.

 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n
t 

ri
s
k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 o

f 
£
1

.0
0

0
m

 (
g
e

n
e

ra
l)
 a

n
d

 
£

0
.7

8
5
m

 (
p

a
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 m
a

tt
e

rs
) 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

to
 b

e
 f

u
lly

 
s
p

e
n

t.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 k
e

p
t 
u

n
d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

s
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
, 

if
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
, 
a
m

o
u
n

ts
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
o

s
it
io

n
. 

O
th

e
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 I
te

m
s

 
 

 

(1
6

) 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

U
n

ri
n

g
fe

n
c
e

d
 

G
ra

n
ts

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 &

 H
e
a

lt
h

 
R

e
fo

rm
 G

ra
n

t.
 

 

 

53



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

H
o

u
s

in
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

- 
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
B

u
d

g
e

t 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 

£
'0

0
0

 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

 
£

'0
0
0

 
£

'0
0
0

 
£

'0
0
0

 
%

 

 (
1

7
4

) 
 

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
  

8
,5

1
8

 
8

,2
8
8

 
 (

2
3

0
) 

 
-2

.7
%

 

 (
3

0
) 

 
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 –

 R
e
p

a
ir
  

1
0

,6
4

5
 

1
0

,3
4

6
 

 (
2

9
9

) 
 

-2
.8

%
 

  
- 

 
 P

re
m

is
e

s
 –

 O
th

e
r 

 
3

,4
4
2

 
3

,3
6
5

 
 (

7
7

) 
 

-2
.2

%
 

  
- 

 
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 &
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
  

2
,0

7
3

 
2

,0
4
7

 
 (

2
6

) 
 

-1
.3

%
 

  
- 

 
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

1
,9

8
1

 
1

,9
4
9

 
 (

3
2

) 
 

-1
.6

%
 

  
- 

 
 T

h
ir
d

 P
a

rt
y
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
  

5
5

 
5

8
 

 3
  

5
.5

%
 

 5
5

8
  

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
 

1
8

,6
4

2
 

1
8

,6
4

2
 

  
- 

 
0

.0
%

 

 (
5

5
8

) 
 

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 C

o
s
ts

  
7

,2
1
9

 
7

,2
1
9

 
  

- 
 

0
.0

%
 

 (
2

0
4

) 
 

 N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n
d

it
u

re
  

 5
2

,5
7

5
  

 5
1

,9
1

4
  

 (
6

6
1

) 
 

-1
.3

%
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

  
- 

 
 D

w
e

lli
n

g
 R

e
n

ts
 (

n
e

t)
  

 (
4

6
,7

0
2

) 
 

 (
4

6
,7

2
6

) 
 

 (
2

4
) 

 
-0

.1
%

 

  
- 

 
 O

th
e

r 
re

n
t 

 
 (

1
,2

4
6

) 
 

 (
1

,2
0
8

) 
 

 3
8

  
3

.0
%

 

  
- 

 
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
  

 (
4

,1
5
2

) 
 

 (
4

,2
4
4

) 
 

 (
9

2
) 

 
-2

.2
%

 

  
- 

 
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

  
 (

4
6

5
) 

 
 (

4
8

4
) 

 
 (

1
9

) 
 

-4
.1

%
 

  
- 

 
 O

th
e

r 
In

c
o
m

e
 &

 R
e

c
h
a

rg
e

s
  

 (
4

1
0

) 
 

 (
3

7
2

) 
 

 3
8

  
9

.3
%

 

  
- 

 
 N

e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

  
 (

5
2

,9
7

5
) 

 
 (

5
3

,0
3

4
) 

 
 (

5
9

) 
 

-0
.1

%
 

 (
2

0
4

) 
 

 T
o

ta
l 

 
 (

4
0

0
) 

 
 (

1
,1

2
0

) 
 

 (
7

2
0

) 
 

  
          

54



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

(2
3

0
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
fi
rs

t 
fe

w
 m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

h
ile

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 w

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
. 

It
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 o

n
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
s
 f

e
w

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 s

c
h
e

m
e

. 
 

 

(2
9

9
) 

P
re

m
is

e
s
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
  

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p
a

ir
s
 a

re
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

to
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 b

y
 

£
0

.2
0

0
m

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 a

n
d

 n
u

m
b
e

rs
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
. 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

g
a

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

in
g
 o

f 
£

0
.1

0
4

m
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
-b

a
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
p

e
n

 b
o
o

k
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
w

a
s
 s

e
t.
 

 

(7
7

) 
P

re
m

is
e

s
 -

o
th

e
r 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 £
0
.0

4
8

m
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 o

n
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 c

o
s
ts

 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
a

n
d

 a
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
u
n

d
e

rs
p
e

n
d
 o

f 
£

0
.0

2
0
m

 o
n

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

w
h

e
re

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

-l
e

t 
q
u

ic
k
e

r 
th

a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 

(2
6

) 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
  

T
h

is
 v

a
ri
a

n
c
e

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 m
a

n
y
 s

m
a

ll 
u
n

d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

s
 o

n
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
lie

s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
fe

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r 

h
a

rd
w

a
re

 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 v
e

h
ic

le
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
c
o

s
ts

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
n

e
w

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

d
. 
T

h
e

 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

s
 a

re
 o

ff
-s

e
t 

b
y
 £

0
.1

0
0

m
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
u

re
 a

 m
o

n
e

y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0
1

2
/1

3
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
u
n

d
e

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 

e
a

rm
a

rk
e
d

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 b

u
t 

h
a

s
 

n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

s
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

s
. 

 

 

55



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

(9
2

) 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 C

h
a

rg
e

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

to
 o

v
e

r 
-r

e
c
o

v
e

r 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 

b
y
 £

0
.0

9
2

m
 (

2
.2

2
%

) 
d
u

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 t
o

 a
n

 u
n
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
1
/1

2
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 (

b
ill

e
d
 i
n

 1
2

/1
3

).
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 m
o

re
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 

w
o

rk
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 

to
 l
e
a

s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

’ 
p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

th
e

 l
a

s
t 
fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 

 

 

56



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
- 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 
  

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 
M

o
n

th
 5

 

£
'0

0
0

 
D

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

 G
ra

n
t 

(D
S

G
) 

£
'0

0
0

 
£

'0
0
0

 
£

'0
0
0

 
%

 

0
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
S

c
h
o

o
l 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
 (

IS
B

) 
(T
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 £
6
.3
8
0
m
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
) 

1
2

6
,7

7
4

 
1

2
6

,7
7

4
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

P
ri
v
a

te
, 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 &

 I
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 

(P
V

I)
 

(E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 3
 &
 4
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 1
5
 

h
o
u
rs
 f
re
e
 e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t)
 

6
,8

0
1

 
6

,8
0
1

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

(4
5

) 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
S

c
h
o

o
ls

 B
u

d
g
e
t 

(T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 £
1
.1
6
8
m
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
u
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 

b
ro
u
g
h
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 f
ro
m
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
) 

1
6

,5
9

5
 

1
6

,4
5

2
 

(1
4

3
) 

-0
.9

%
 

0
 

G
ra

n
t 

in
c
o

m
e

 
(1

4
9

,0
0

2
) 

(1
4

9
,0

0
2

) 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

(4
5

) 
T

o
ta

l 
N

e
t 

D
S

G
 

1
,1

6
8

 
1

,0
2
5

 
(1

4
3

) 
-1

2
.2

%
 

 

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s

 
£

’0
0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
: 

F
T

E
/W

T
E

 =
 F

u
ll/

W
h
o

le
 T

im
e

 E
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

S
c

h
o

o
ls

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

(6
2

) 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 

P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
A

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
e
tt

in
g
 t

im
e

 i
t 

w
a

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 6
1

 F
T

E
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 
a

n
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t 
re

m
a

in
s
 a

t 
6

1
 b

u
t 
d

u
e
 

to
 f

a
v
o

u
ra

b
le

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
ts

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

. 

 

(4
8

) 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

o
o

k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
 

C
o

s
ts

 b
e

in
g
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
. 

 

(1
9

) 
S

w
a

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
S

m
a

ll 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

n
 n

o
n

-e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 

(1
4

) 
V

a
ri
o

u
s
 

O
th

e
r 

m
in

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 

 

57



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  

N
H

S
 T

ru
s

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 S
7

5
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
 -

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
  

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

  
 F

o
re

c
a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

 F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 

  
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 

 O
u

tt
u

rn
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

M
o

n
th

 2
 

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  
 M

o
n

th
 5

  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 S

7
5

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

 £
'0

0
0

  
 £

'0
0

0
  

%
 

 8
  

 S
u

s
s
e

x
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o
n

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t 

(S
P

F
T

) 
 

1
1

,4
8

5
 

1
1

,3
6

4
 

 (
1

2
1

) 
 

-1
.1

%
 

 (
1

6
4

) 
 

 S
u

s
s
e

x
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 
(S

C
T

) 
 

2
,4

3
6

 
2

,4
8
3

 
 4

7
  

1
.9

%
 

 (
1

5
6

) 
 

 T
o

ta
l 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 -

  
S

7
5
  

1
3

,9
2

1
 

1
3

,8
4

7
 

(7
4

) 
-0

.5
%

 
 E

x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

K
e

y
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s

 
£

’0
0
0

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

(N
o

te
 W

T
E

 =
 W

h
o
le

 T
im

e
 E

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 (

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
o

n
ly

) 

S
u

s
s

e
x

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 

(1
2

1
) 

S
P

F
T

 
S

u
s
s
e

x
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 F

o
u

n
d
a

ti
o

n
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 

(S
P

F
T

) 
is

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
0

.1
2
1
m

 a
t 

M
o

n
th

 5
. 

 T
h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

£
0

.3
2

6
m

 h
a

s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 
O

n
 t
o

p
 o

f 
th

is
, 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

f 
£

0
.0

8
3
m

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
s
s
is

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g
y
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

re
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

a
re

 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
fr

o
m

 a
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
u

it
a

b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

, 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

in
 t

h
e

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 P

la
n

. 
 I

n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 r
is

k
-

s
h

a
re

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o
r 

2
0

1
2
/1

3
 a

n
y
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

r 
u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
h

a
re

d
 5

0
/5

0
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

P
F

T
 a

n
d

 B
H

C
C

. 

 

S
u

s
s

e
x

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 

4
7

 
S

C
T

 
S

u
s
s
e

x
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 
(S

C
T

) 
a

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.0

4
6
m

. 
T

h
e

 H
IV

 b
u
d
g
e

t 
is

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o

s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 2
0
1

1
/1

2
. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

In
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 C

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 a

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

is
 p

o
s
it
io

n
..
 

 

 

58



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

P
e
o
p
le
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

  
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 
A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

N
e
w
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
, 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 
F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
  

a
t 
o
th
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
  

n
  
 

 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 O
u
tt
u
rn
 
 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
th
 2
 
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 
o
r 
re
p
ro
fi
le
 
M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

£
'0
0
0
 
 U
n
it
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

2
7

,0
9

3
 

1
,3

3
2

 
0

 
0

 
2

8
,4

2
5

 
2

8
,4

2
5

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

  
&

 F
a

m
ili

e
s

 

3
9

3
 

0
 

1
7

 
0

 
4

1
0

 
4

1
0

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

2
7

,4
8

6
 

1
,3

3
2

 
1

7
 

0
 

2
8

,8
3

5
 

2
8

,8
3

5
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
3

4
7

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
3

4
7

 
3

4
7

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 A

d
u

lt
s

 
P

ro
v

id
e

r 
1

6
9

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

6
9

 
1

6
9

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 A

d
u

lt
s

 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
5

5
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

5
0

 
7

0
1

 
7

0
1

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
d

u
lt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
1

0
6

7
 

0
 

0
 

1
5

0
 

1
,2

1
7

 
1

,2
1

7
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 
T
o
ta
l 
P
e
o
p
le
 

2
8
,5
5
3
 

1
,3
3
2
 

1
7
 

1
5
0
 

3
0
,0
5
2
 

3
0
,0
5
2
 

0
 

0
.0
%
 

 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
F
o
re
c
a
s
t 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
, 
S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 o
r 
R
e
p
ro
fi
le
s
 a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

D
e
ta
il
 

T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 A
d
u
lt
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
5

0
 

A
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 

fo
r 

th
e

 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 

T
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
A

S
C

 m
in

o
r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 £

0
.1

5
0

m
 t

o
 

h
e

lp
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 i

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
d

 c
a

re
 f

o
r 

re
s

id
e

n
ts

. 
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

re
s

e
a

rc
h

 d
e

m
o

n
s

tr
a

te
s

 t
h

a
t 

m
o

s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

o
u

ld
 c

h
o

o
s

e
 t

h
e

 o
n

e
-o

ff
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

re
-a

b
lin

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
re

 c
o

s
tl

y
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 c
a

re
 

p
a

c
k

a
g

e
 (

B
e

tt
e

r 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

, 
L

o
w

e
r 

C
o

s
ts

 O
D

I/
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l,
 2

0
0

7
).

 D
e

m
a

n
d

 i
s

 

 

59



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

D
e
ta
il
 

T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 m

o
re

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
c

e
iv

in
g

 e
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

 a
s

s
e

s
s

o
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 

o
u

t 
a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 b
e

tt
e

r 
v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
s

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
it

ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s

 i
s

 b
e

in
g

 t
e

n
d

e
re

d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

£
0

.0
6

0
m

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
llo

c
a

te
d

 o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e
 £

0
.1

5
0

m
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 ‘
H

a
n

d
lin

g
 t

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

’ 
p

ro
je

c
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 u
s

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 

c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

u
a

l 
h

a
n

d
lin

g
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s

e
rs

. 
 

T
h

is
 v

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 A
d

u
lt

 
S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 T

h
is

 i
s

 i
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

a
rr

y
-f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 
2

0
1

1
/1

2
 o

f 
£

0
.1

1
8

m
 p

re
v

io
u

s
ly

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 P

&
R

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 1

4
th

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
2

. 
T

h
e

 
to

ta
l 

a
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

2
/1

3
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 £

0
.2

6
8

m
. 

 
 

60



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

P
la
c
e
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

  
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 
R
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

N
e
w
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
, 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 
F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
  

A
t 
o
th
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

in
  
 

 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 O
u
tt
u
rn
 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
th
 2
 
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
 
M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 
o
r 
re
p
ro
fi
le
 
M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

£
'0
0
0
 
 U
n
it
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
C

it
y

 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 &

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 

7
,5

0
8

 
0

 
4

6
1

 
0

 
7

,9
6

9
 

7
,9

6
9

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 C

it
y

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 
8

,6
5

1
 

0
 

1
5

3
 

1
0

 
8

,8
1

4
 

8
,8

1
4

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 –
 P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

P
u

b
lic

 P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 

0
 

0
 

1
8

 
0

 
1

8
 

1
8

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 
8

6
6

 
0

 
0

 
(5

0
) 

8
1

6
 

8
1

6
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
it

y
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 &

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c

tu
re

 
1

7
,0

2
5

 
0

 
6

3
2

 
(4

0
) 

1
7

,6
1

7
 

1
7

,6
1

7
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

7
,0

1
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
7

,0
1

0
 

7
,0

1
0

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 &

 
S

o
c

ia
l 

In
c

lu
s

io
n

 (
H

R
A

 
C

a
p

it
a

l)
 

3
8

,7
6

8
 

0
 

3
5

0
 

(2
,4

1
6

) 
3

6
,7

0
2

 
3

6
,6

9
1

 
(1

1
) 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
4

5
,7

7
8

 
0

 
3

5
0

 
(2

,4
1

6
) 

4
3

,7
1

2
 

4
3

,7
0

1
 

(1
1

) 
0

.0
%

 

0
 
T
o
ta
l 
P
la
c
e
 

6
2
,8
0
3
 

0
 

9
8
2
 

(2
,4
5
6
) 

6
1
,3
2
9
 

6
1
,3
1
8
 

(1
1
) 

0
.0
%
 

 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
F
o
re
c
a
s
t 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
, 
S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 o
r 
R
e
p
ro
fi
le
s
 a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

D
e
ta
il
 

T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 C
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
0

 
A

ld
ri

n
g

to
n

 /
 

W
is

h
 S

1
0

6
 

A
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

£
0

.0
1

0
m

 i
s

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 W

is
h

 p
a

rk
 p

la
y

 a
re

a
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 a

 S
1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

. 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
–
 M
a
jo
r 
P
ro
je
c
ts
 

61



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

D
e
ta
il
 

T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

(5
0

) 
M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 
M

in
o

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
s

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 S
h

o
re

h
a

m
 

H
a

rb
o

u
r 

(£
0

.0
4

5
m

) 
a

n
d

 T
h

e
 K

e
e

p
 (

£
0

.0
0

5
m

) 
w

it
h

in
 M

a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
ts

, 
a

s
 t

h
is

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

w
it

c
h

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
, 

re
s

u
lt

 
in

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 a

re
a

. 

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 (
H
R
A
 C
a
p
it
a
l)
 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(1

0
0

) 
M

a
jo

r 
E

m
p

ty
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

R
e

p
ro

fi
lin

g
 o

f 
£

0
.1

0
0

m
 i

s
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 i

n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 

m
a

jo
r 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
g

in
 i

n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 b

u
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
s

ti
m

a
te

s
 i

n
d

ic
a

te
 t

h
a

t 
s

o
m

e
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 u

n
ti

l 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(4

0
0

) 
P

re
-r

e
le

a
s

e
 

c
o

n
v

e
rs

io
n

 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

S
e

a
s

id
e

 
H

o
m

e
s

 (
T

A
C

C
) 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

la
y

s
 i

n
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 l

a
rg

e
s

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

n
v

e
rs

io
n

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 a

t 
2

4
3

/2
4

5
 P

re
s

to
n

 R
o

a
d

 a
s

 P
&

R
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 a

p
p

ro
v

a
l 

w
a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 i

n
 

th
e

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t.

 T
h

e
 d

e
te

ri
o

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
s

u
rv

e
y

s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 l

e
v

e
ls

 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 h

a
v

e
 h

a
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

. 

 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(6

0
0

) 
L

if
t 

R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i

n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 o

f 
£

6
0

0
,0

0
0

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i

n
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 a
n

d
 i

t 
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
p

ro
fi

le
 t

h
is

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 

th
e

s
e

 w
o

rk
s

. 

 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(4

1
6

) 
R

e
w

ir
in

g
 –

 
E

s
s

e
x

 P
la

c
e

 
T

h
e

 E
s

s
e

x
 P

la
c

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
a

l 
lig

h
ti

n
g

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

 p
ro

je
c

t 
h

a
s

 n
o

w
 

b
e

e
n

 m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

s
e

 w
o

rk
s

 n
e

e
d

 
to

 f
o

llo
w

 o
n

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 

p
re

c
e

d
e

n
t 

s
u

c
h

 a
s

 t
h

e
 l

if
t 

re
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 r

e
p

a
ir

 t
h

e
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
rm

a
l 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

lo
c

k
. 

 
M

o
v

in
g

 t
h

e
s

e
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
ti

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
s

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 m
in

im
is

e
 d

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
s

id
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 b
lo

c
k

. 

 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(9

0
0

) 
R

e
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

R
A

 G
a

ra
g

e
 

S
it

e
s

 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
w

a
s

 g
iv

e
n

 b
y

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 2
6

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
to

 t
a

k
e

 
fo

rw
a

rd
 f

in
a

l 
fe

a
s

ib
ili

ty
, 

d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 c

o
u

n
c

il 

 

62



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

D
e
ta
il
 

T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

h
o

m
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 H
R

A
 v

a
c

a
n

t 
g

a
ra

g
e

 s
it

e
s

. 
T

h
e

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

ra
g

e
 s

it
e

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
ill

 r
e

s
u

lt
 i

n
 £

0
.9

0
0

m
 o

f 
th

e
 £

1
.3

m
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

s
e

 s
it

e
s

 b
e

in
g

 s
p

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 
fi

n
a

n
c

ia
l 

y
e

a
r.

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
(2

0
0

) 
S

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 

w
o

rk
s

 
A

 p
ro

je
c

te
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

0
.2

0
0

m
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
s

e
 

e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 m
a

jo
r 

w
o

rk
s

 n
o

w
 b

e
in

g
 l

e
a

s
e

d
 t

o
 

S
e

a
s

id
e

 H
o

m
e

s
. 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
4

0
5

 
T

V
 a

e
ri

a
ls

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c

t 
is

 p
ro

je
c

te
d

 t
o

 o
v

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 b
y

 £
0

.4
0

5
 m

ill
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
o

ri
g

in
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

f 
£

1
.4

 m
ill

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 s
p

e
n

d
 w

a
s

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

s
it

e
s

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
s

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s

u
re

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

 w
e

re
 u

n
a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
s

w
it

c
h

o
v

e
r,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti

o
n

 o
f 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

v
a

n
d

a
lis

m
. 

 

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

c
o

s
ts

 
a

m
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t

o
 £

0
.1

5
0

 m
ill

io
n

 
a

re
 r

e
c

o
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

c
h

a
rg

e
s

, 
a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 a
s

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 H

R
A

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 T
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c

e
 o

f 
£

0
.2

5
5

 
m

ill
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 

fr
o

m
 o

th
e

r 
H

R
A

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

. 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
(2

4
8

) 
E

m
p

ty
 

P
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 

A
ll 

w
o

rk
s

 t
o

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

is
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
n

d
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
s

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y

e
a

r.
 

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
/p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
v

a
ila

b
le

 
a

n
d

 s
o

 a
re

 e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

a
v

in
g

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

£
0

.2
4

8
m

. 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
3

2
 

O
v

e
rh

e
a

d
s

 
M

in
o

r 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 o

v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 f

o
re

c
a

s
te

d
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 
 

 

63



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 -
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

  
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 
R
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

N
e
w
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
, 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
  

a
t 
o
th
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

in
  
 

 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 O
u
tt
u
rn
 

 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
th
 2
 
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

o
r 
re
p
ro
fi
le
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

£
'0
0
0
 
 U
n
it
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

%
 

0
 

C
o

m
m

is
s

io
n

e
r 

- 
S

p
o

rt
s

 &
 L

e
is

u
re

 
1

,0
9

8
 

0
 

3
0

 
(5

0
0

) 
6

2
8

 
5

9
3

 
(3

5
) 

-5
.6

%
 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 

T
o

u
ri

s
m

 &
 

L
e

is
u

re
 

3
,3

1
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
3

,3
1

1
 

3
,3

1
1

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 
T
o
ta
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

4
,4
0
9
 

0
 

3
0
 

(5
0
0
) 

3
,9
3
9
 

3
,9
0
4
 

(3
5
) 

-0
.9
%
 

 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
F
o
re
c
a
s
t 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
, 
S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 o
r 
R
e
p
ro
fi
le
s
 a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 b
e
lo
w
: 

  

D
e
ta
il
 

T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
–
 S
p
o
rt
s
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(5

0
0

) 
W

it
h

d
e

a
n

 
A

th
le

ti
c

s
 T

ra
c

k
 

T
h

e
 r

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 t

ra
c

k
 h

a
s

 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 w

a
rm

e
r 

m
o

n
th

s
 a

n
d

 
w

e
 h

a
d

 i
n

it
ia

lly
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
o

 d
o

 t
h

is
 i

n
 l

a
te

 s
u

m
m

e
r/

a
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
1

2
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 
ti

m
e

s
c

a
le

 p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
o

 t
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
la

y
s

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i

n
 i

t 
b

e
in

g
 u

n
fi

n
is

h
e

d
 f

o
r 

w
in

te
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
. 

W
e

 a
re

 n
o

w
 l

o
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
c

o
m

m
e

n
c

in
g

 w
o

rk
s

 i
n

 e
it

h
e

r 
A

p
ri

l 
o

r 
A

u
g

u
s

t 
2

0
1

3
 (

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
th

le
ti

c
s

 
c

lu
b

s
 w

o
u

ld
 p

re
fe

r)
. 

A
 r

e
p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
£

0
.5

0
0

m
 t

o
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 i

s
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
. 

 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
(3

5
) 

S
ta

n
le

y
 

D
e

a
s

o
n

 a
ll 

w
e

a
th

e
r 

tr
a

c
k

 

T
e

n
d

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c

t 
is

 £
0

.0
3

5
m

 l
e

s
s

 t
h

a
n

 
e

x
p

e
c

te
d

. 
 

 

64



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 &
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 -
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
B
u
d
g
e
t 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

  
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

N
e
w
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
, 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
  

a
t 
o
th
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
  
 

 S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

 O
u
tt
u
rn
 
 V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

M
o
n
th
 2
 
  

B
u
d
g
e
t 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 
o
r 
re
p
ro
fi
le
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

M
o
n
th
 5
 

£
'0
0
0
 
 U
n
it
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

%
 

0
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

 -
 

C
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

1
,7

7
4

 
0

 
0

 
6

0
6

 
2

,3
8

0
 

2
,3

8
0

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
9

,9
9

2
 

0
 

0
 

(2
0

3
) 

9
,7

8
9

 
9

,7
8

9
 

0
 

0
.0

%
 

0
 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
1

3
9

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

3
9

 
1

3
9

 
0

 
0

.0
%

 

0
 
T
o
ta
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 &
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

1
1
,9
0
5
 

0
 

0
 

4
0
3
 

1
2
,3
0
8
 

1
2
,3
0
8
 

0
 

0
.0
%
 

 D
e
ta
il
s
 o
f 
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
la
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
F
o
re
c
a
s
t 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
, 
S
li
p
p
a
g
e
 o
r 
R
e
p
ro
fi
le
s
 a
re
 g
iv
e
n
 b
e
lo
w
: 

 

D
e
ta
il
 T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 C
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

6
0

6
 

W
o

o
d

v
a

le
 

C
re

m
a

to
rs

 f
o

r 
M

e
rc

u
ry

 A
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

In
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 

b
ri

e
f 

s
in

c
e

  
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 i
n

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

2
 i

t 
h

a
s

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y

 a
n

d
 c

o
s

ts
 a

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 a

 Q
u

a
n

ti
ty

 
S

u
rv

e
y

o
r,

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 £

1
.2

 m
ill

io
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v

e
 t

h
e

 
m

in
im

u
m

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 m
e

rc
u

ry
 a

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

 
A

n
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

p
ti

o
n

s
 h

a
s

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
 p

re
fe

rr
e

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

h
e

re
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

£
0

.6
0

6
 m

ill
io

n
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ts
 b

e
tt

e
r 

V
a

lu
e

 F
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y

 o
v

e
r 

th
e

 
lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 l
e

g
is

la
ti

o
n

, 
w

h
ils

t 
ta

k
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v

e
 c

u
s

to
m

e
r 

fa
c

ili
ti

e
s

 a
t 

W
o

o
d

v
a

le
. 

 T
h

e
 i

n
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

t 
a

 g
o

o
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 c

a
s

e
 b

y
 

e
n

a
b

lin
g

 m
in

im
a

l 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
in

im
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 l

o
s

s
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 p

a
tr

o
n

a
g

e
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

s
s

o
n

s
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
c

re
m

a
to

ri
a

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

re
 e

a
rl

y
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
rs

 o
f 

m
e

rc
u

ry
 a

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

  

65



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

D
e
ta
il
 T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

e
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 

w
o

rk
s

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c

e
 w

it
h

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 o
u

r 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
 t

o
 a

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
c

u
s

to
m

e
rs

. 
 B

y
 a

d
d

re
s

s
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

p
a

ir
 a

n
d

 u
p

k
e

e
p

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 n
o

w
, 

th
e

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ill

 a
v

o
id

 p
re

s
s

u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 y
e

a
rs

, 
a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 m

in
im

is
e

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
c

u
s

to
m

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
re

m
a

to
rs

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 s
e

rv
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 s

h
e

lf
 l

if
e

, 
e

s
s

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

a
m

p
 p

ro
o

fi
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
a

ir
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 c
h

a
p

e
l 

ro
o

fs
, 

n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 
re

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

 l
ig

h
ti

n
g

. 
 T

h
e

 s
c

h
e

m
e

 w
ill

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 a

t 
W

o
o

d
v

a
le

 C
re

m
a

to
ri

u
m

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 a
ir

 
a

n
d

 w
a

te
r 

p
o

llu
ti

o
n

, 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

s
 i

n
 e

n
e

rg
y

 c
o

n
s

u
m

p
ti

o
n

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
c

y
c

lin
g

 o
f 

h
e

a
t,

 a
n

d
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 i
n

 c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

. 
T

h
e

 c
re

m
a

to
ri

u
m

 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

m
a

in
 o

p
e

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
u

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
s

. 
 T

h
e

 p
ro

je
c

t 
is

 b
e

in
g

 p
ro

c
u

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 T
ie

r 
2

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u

s
s

e
x

 C
lu

s
te

r 
IE

S
E

 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

; 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
is

 m
e

th
o

d
 o

f 
p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

re
d

u
c

e
s

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

a
g

re
e

d
 m

a
x

im
u

m
 p

ri
c

e
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
c

e
e

d
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
in

a
n

c
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
s

e
rv

e
s

 b
u

ilt
 u

p
 i

n
 

a
n

ti
c

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
rc

u
ry

 a
b

a
te

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
s

 o
f 

£
0

.5
4

8
 m

ill
io

n
 a

n
d

 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 o
f 

£
1

.2
5

8
 m

ill
io

n
. 

T
h

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
a

id
 o

v
e

r 
a

 1
5

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
e

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 M
e

rc
u

ry
 A

b
a

te
m

e
n

t 
le

v
y

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 p
e

r 
c

re
m

a
ti

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 f

ro
m

 f
e

e
s

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
. 

It
 i

s
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 o
f 

£
0

.0
3

5
m

 a
 y

e
a

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

 a
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

th
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ru
n

n
in

g
 

c
o

s
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 n
e

w
 e

n
e

rg
y

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
s

ts
 

a
t 

th
e

 W
o

o
d

v
a

le
 s

it
e

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c

e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il’
s

 
C

a
rb

o
n

 R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
p

a
y

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

c
a

p
it

a
l 

66



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 2
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

D
e
ta
il
 T
y
p
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

s
p

e
n

d
 i

s
 £

0
.2

0
0

m
 i

n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
, 

a
n

d
 £

1
.6

0
6

m
 i

n
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
o

f 
th

e
 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

0
.6

0
6

m
 i

s
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 
th

e
 A

c
ti

n
g

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 
 

 
 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(8

7
) 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

- 
P

re
s

to
n

 M
a

n
o

r 
E

le
c

tr
ic

a
l 

R
e

m
e

d
ia

ls
  

P
h

a
s

e
 1

 a
n

d
 P

h
a

s
e

 2
 o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
e

c
o

ra
ti

o
n

 
to

 P
re

s
to

n
 M

a
n

o
r 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
o

lle
d

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
a

c
ro

s
s

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y

e
a

rs
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 e
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 

e
x

te
rn

a
l 

re
p

a
ir

s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 g
ra

d
e

 2
 

s
ta

r 
lis

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 i

n
 p

ro
g

re
s

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 b
y

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 d

a
n

g
e

rs
 o

f 
fr

o
s

t 
th

a
t 

c
a

n
 d

e
s

tr
o

y
 h

is
to

ri
c

 b
u

ild
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
. 

A
 s

m
a

lle
r 

s
c

a
le

 P
h

a
s

e
 3

 o
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 e
x

te
rn

a
l 

a
n

d
 i

n
te

rn
a

l 
re

p
a

ir
s

 i
s

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

m
o

n
th

s
 i

n
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i

s
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

llo
c

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 P

la
n

n
e

d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

P
h

a
s

e
 3

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g

 £
0

.0
4

0
m

 i
n

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r’
s

 p
h

a
s

e
 2

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 u
s

e
d

 t
o

 
s

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
is

. 

 

R
e

p
ro

fi
le

 
(1

1
6

) 
P

la
n

n
e

d
 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
–

 P
re

s
to

n
 M

a
n

o
r 

E
x

tr
e

n
a

l 
R

e
p

a
ir

 
P

h
a

s
e

 2
 &

 R
e

p
a

c
e

 
fi

re
 a

la
rm

 &
 l

ig
h

ti
n

g
 

A
s

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
b

o
v

e
, 

P
h

a
s

e
s

 1
 a

n
d

 2
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 a

t 
P

re
s

to
n

 
M

a
n

o
r 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
c

o
m

p
le

te
 u

n
ti

l 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

. 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
is

to
ri

c
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

C
o

n
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
lis

h
 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 i
s

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

s
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 
e

le
c

tr
ic

a
l,

 f
ir

e
 a

la
rm

 a
n

d
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 l

ig
h

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

e
d

. 
It

 
m

a
y

 a
ls

o
 m

a
k

e
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

s
e

n
s

e
 t

o
 a

lig
n

 t
h

e
s

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

a
l 

w
o

rk
s

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

s
e

 
o

f 
P

h
a

s
e

 3
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
x

p
lo

re
 p

o
s

s
ib

le
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 i

n
 

p
ro

c
u

ri
n

g
 i

n
te

rn
a

l 
fa

b
ri

c
 r

e
p

a
ir

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s

e
 e

le
c

tr
ic

a
l 

w
o

rk
s

 a
s

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
a

c
k

a
g

e
 t

o
 m

a
x

im
is

e
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
t 

is
 t

o
 r

e
p

ro
fi

le
 b

o
th

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

 i
n

 
fu

ll 
to

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 

 

 

67



68



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

 

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 &
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

N
e
w
 V
e
h
ic
le
 f
o
r 
5
5
 D
ro
v
e
 R
o
a
d
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
) 

£
1
7
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 T
h
e
 S
h
o
rt
 T
e
rm
 C
a
re
 U
n
it
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 a
 s
e
v
e
re
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
g
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 1
0
 

a
n
d
 1
8
 y
e
a
rs
. 
R
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
h
o
rt
 s
ta
y
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 e
n
a
b
lin
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 h
o
m
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 

th
e
 C
a
re
 U
n
it
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
, 
p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 t
h
e
m
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
rs
 s
a
fe
ly
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
. 
T
h
is
 n
e
w
 v
e
h
ic
le
 i
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 U
n
it
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 o
n
e
. 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

U
n
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

1
7
 

0
 

0
 

1
7
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

1
7
 

0
 

0
 

1
7
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 U
n
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
is
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
o
a
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
th
e
 u
n
it
. 

 

 

69



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

 

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
–
 C
it
y
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 &
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 t
o
 R
iv
e
r 
A
d
u
r 
S
tu
d
y
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
2
3
3
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 a
p
p
ly
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 
a
 g
ra
n
t 
to
w
a
rd
s
 w
o
rk
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 M
a
ri
n
a
 t
o
 R
iv
e
r 

A
d
u
r 
a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
E
ro
s
io
n
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tu
d
y
. 
A
 n
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 s
tu
d
y
 o
f 
th
is
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
a
s
t 
h
a
s
 j
u
s
t 
b
e
g
u
n
 a
n
d
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
4
. 
A
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 s
tu
d
y
 l
o
o
k
s
 i
n
 d
e
ta
il 
a
t 
th
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
c
o
a
s
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 i
t 
w
ill
 e
v
o
lv
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
1
0
0
 

y
e
a
rs
, 
th
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
h
u
m
a
n
 a
n
d
 n
a
tu
ra
l 
fa
c
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
in
g
 i
t 
n
o
w
 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
, 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
 a
n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
k
in
d
 o
f 
d
e
fe
n
s
iv
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
. 

 T
h
e
 s
tu
d
y
 a
re
a
 c
o
v
e
rs
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
c
o
a
s
t 
a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 b
y
 A
d
u
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
is
 m
e
t 
b
y
 

th
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
. 

  C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

G
ra
n
t 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

1
1
1
 

1
0
1
 

2
1
 

2
3
3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

1
1
1
 

1
0
1
 

2
1
 

2
3
3
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 T
h
e
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 o
th
e
r 
F
lo
o
d
 a
n
d
 C
o
a
s
ta
l 
E
ro
s
io
n
 R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
(F
C
E
R
M
) 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
6
 o
f 
th
e
 F
lo
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 W
a
te
r 
A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
. 
G
ra
n
ts
 a
re
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
c
u
rr
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
, 
o
r 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
, 
fl
o
o
d
 o
r 
e
ro
s
io
n
 r
is
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
a
te
r 

le
v
e
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 

. 

 

70



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

 

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
–
 C
it
y
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 &
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

T
h
e
 B
e
tt
e
r 
B
u
s
 A
re
a
 F
u
n
d
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
2
,1
0
0
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 T
h
e
 c
it
y
 i
s
 r
e
n
o
w
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
h
a
v
in
g
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
b
u
s
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
 p
a
tr
o
n
a
g
e
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

3
0
.2
 m
ill
io
n
 j
o
u
rn
e
y
s
 i
n
 2
0
0
1
 t
o
 4
1
.1
 m
ill
io
n
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
. 
O
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 y
e
a
rs
 p
a
tr
o
n
a
g
e
 h
a
s
 g
ro
w
n
 b
y
 1
6
.5
%
 (
a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
5
.8
 

m
ill
io
n
 p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs
).
 

 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
 g
ra
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
B
e
tt
e
r 
B
u
s
 A
re
a
s
’ 
fu
n
d
. 
T
h
e
 m
o
n
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
o
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 

 In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
b
u
s
 p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
rs
 a
ro
u
n
d
 V
a
lle
y
 G
a
rd
e
n
s
; 
e
n
h
a
n
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
u
te
 a
lo
n
g
 E
d
w
a
rd
 

S
tr
e
e
t/
E
a
s
te
rn
 R
o
a
d
 t
o
 s
e
rv
e
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 R
o
y
a
l 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t;
 a
n
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
b
u
s
 s
to
p
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 L
e
w
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
to
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 ‘
b
e
n
d
y
’ 
b
u
s
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
e
 o
n
 s
tr
e
a
m
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l.
 T
h
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
ill
 h
e
lp
 l
in
k
 b
u
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 w
it
h
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 r
e
a
lm
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie
r 
a
n
d
 q
u
ic
k
e
r 
to
 g
e
t 
to
 k
e
y
 d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

c
e
n
tr
e
, 
B
ri
g
h
to
n
 s
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R
o
y
a
l 
S
u
s
s
e
x
 C
o
u
n
ty
 h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
 

 Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
ro
u
n
d
 V
a
lle
y
 G
a
rd
e
n
s
, 
fr
o
m
 T
h
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
to
 t
h
e
 O
ld
 S
te
in
e
 i
n
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
, 
a
re
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 w
id
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
 r
e
a
lm
 p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
n
d
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
, 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 e
n
jo
y
 y
e
a
r-
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 a
t 
a
ll 
ti
m
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 d
a
y
. 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

G
ra
n
t 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 

3
5
0
 

1
,7
5
0
 

0
 

2
,1
0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

3
5
0
 

1
,7
5
0
 

0
 

2
,1
0
0
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 g
ra
n
t 
o
f 
£
2
.1
m
 t
o
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

 

71



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

 

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 C
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

C
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
1
5
3
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

T
h
is
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
o
lle
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
C
a
n
n
in
g
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 R
ic
h
m
o
n
d
 H
e
ig
h
ts
 a
n
d
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 s
ta
ti
o
n
. 
It
 

in
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
s
u
rv
e
y
s
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
, 
lin
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 m
a
c
h
in
e
s
. 
  
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

U
n
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

1
5
3
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

1
5
3
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
3
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 T
h
e
 £
0
.1
5
3
m
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
u
m
 c
o
n
s
is
ts
 o
f 
£
0
.1
3
3
m
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
C
a
n
n
in
g
 S
tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 R
ic
h
m
o
n
d
 H
e
ig
h
ts
 a
n
d
 £
0
.0
2
0
m
 f
o
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 R
o
a
d
 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
. 
W
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 £
0
.0
7
8
m
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 l
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
, 
£
0
.0
5
5
m
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
a
y
 a
n
d
 d
is
p
la
y
 m
a
c
h
in
e
s
 a
n
d
 £
0
.0
2
0
m
 

is
 f
o
r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
 c
o
s
ts
. 
 

 T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
a
n
y
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 O
n
-S
tr
e
e
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t,
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 s
u
rp
lu
s
 

a
ft
e
r 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 w
ill
 t
h
e
n
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
p
a
y
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
s
 c
o
s
ts
 o
v
e
r 
7
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 
 

72



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

 

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 V
e
h
ic
le
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
1
8
,1
5
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 T
h
e
 C
iv
il 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 A
c
t 
2
0
0
4
 p
la
c
e
s
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 c
iv
il 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
s
. 
In
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

te
rm
s
 t
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 h
u
m
a
n
it
a
ri
a
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
T
h
is
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 v
e
h
ic
le
 t
o
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 2
4
/7
 c
a
rr
y
in
g
 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
is
 m
o
s
t 
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 a
t 
o
r 
n
e
a
r 
th
e
 s
c
e
n
e
 o
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
id
e
n
t.
 

 A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t,
 t
h
is
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
is
 s
to
re
d
 i
n
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
e
n
e
, 
o
ft
e
n
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 d
e
la
y
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
is
 v
e
h
ic
le
 w
ill
 g
re
a
tl
y
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
. 

 T
h
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 F
o
rd
 R
a
n
g
e
r 
4
 w
h
e
e
l 
d
ri
v
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
te
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
th
o
s
e
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
s
e
v
e
re
 w
e
a
th
e
r.
 I
t 
w
ill
 r
o
u
ti
n
e
ly
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
iv
il 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 T
e
a
m
 f
o
r 
d
a
y
 t
o
 d
a
y
 w
o
rk
, 
th
u
s
 s
a
v
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

o
ff
ic
e
r 
c
o
s
ts
, 
a
n
d
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 '
o
n
-c
a
ll'
 C
iv
il 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 D
u
ty
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
if
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

U
n
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

1
8
 

0
 

0
 

1
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

1
8
 

0
 

0
 

1
8
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
o
a
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 v
e
h
ic
le
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
it
’s
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 f
o
re
c
a
s
ts
. 
 

 

73



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

 

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 –
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 (
H
R
A
 C
a
p
it
a
l)
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

F
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 &
 D
e
s
ig
n
 f
o
r 
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 L
a
n
d
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
1
,0
0
0
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
it
le
d
 ‘
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 I
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
2
0
1
2
-2
0
2
0
: 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 &
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
’ 
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
6
th
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
in
it
ia
l 
fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
, 
o
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
n
 H
R
A
 l
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
t 
a
n
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
£
1
 

m
ill
io
n
. 

T
h
is
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
is
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
£
1
 m
ill
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
In
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
p
ro
fi
le
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 
tw
o
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
rs
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 (
£
0
.3
5
0
 m
ill
io
n
) 
a
n
d
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 (
£
0
.6
5
0
 m
ill
io
n
),
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
c
a
n
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 p
e
r 
ti
m
e
ta
b
le
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 T
B
M
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
. 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

H
R
A
 U
s
a
b
le
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 

3
5
0
 

6
5
0
 

0
 

1
,0
0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

3
5
0
 

6
5
0
 

0
 

1
,0
0
0
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 T
h
e
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
£
1
 m
ill
io
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
, 
d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 o
n
 H
R
A
 

la
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 H
R
A
 u
s
a
b
le
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 

          

74



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

    

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
–
 S
p
o
rt
s
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 L
id
o
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 W
o
rk
s
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
3
0
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
it
le
d
 ‘
S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 L
id
o
 U
p
d
a
te
’ 
w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
&
 C
u
lt
u
re
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 2
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
w
h
ic
h
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 u
n
d
e
r 
u
rg
e
n
c
y
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 r
is
k
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
T
h
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
w
o
rk
s
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
0
.0
3
0
m
 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 

3
0
 

0
 

0
 

3
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

3
0
 

0
 

0
 

3
0
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
s
 i
s
 £
0
.1
3
0
m
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 0
.0
3
0
m
 i
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 £
0
.1
0
0
m
 i
s
 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
. 
T
h
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
p
e
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 a
 

re
v
e
n
u
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 r
is
k
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 

              

75



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 –
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
h
a
n
g
e
s
  

      

N
e
w
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

U
n
it
: 
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 –
 T
o
u
ri
s
m
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
ti
tl
e
: 
 

i3
6
0
 

T
o
ta
l 
P
ro
je
c
t 
C
o
s
t 
(A
ll 
Y
e
a
rs
):
 

£
1
7
,7
9
3
,0
0
0
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
, 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 r
is
k
s
: 

 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
it
le
d
 ‘
i3
6
0
 L
o
a
n
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t’
 w
a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 o
n
 1
2
 J
u
ly
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
t 
th
e
 t
im
e
 o
f 
w
ri
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
a
n
 d
ra
w
d
o
w
n
s
 h
a
d
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 B
ri
g
h
to
n
 i
3
6
0
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t 
to
 b
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
, 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 T
B
M
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 i
s
 h
e
re
b
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t,
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
it
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 &
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 c
a
p
it
a
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 p
ro
fi
le
 (
£
’0
0
0
):
 

Y
e
a
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

T
O
T
A
L
 

U
n
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 

0
 

3
,6
0
5
 

1
1
,1
8
8
 

1
4
,7
9
3
 

L
o
c
a
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 (
L
E
P
) 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

0
 

7
3
1
 

2
,2
6
9
 

3
,0
0
0
 

 
 

 
 

 

T
o
ta
l 
e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
s
 

0
 

4
,3
3
6
 

1
3
,4
5
7
 

1
7
,7
9
3
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
: 

 T
h
e
 i
3
6
0
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 1
2
 J
u
ly
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
; 
th
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
v
e
 c
la
ri
fi
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

  

76



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 –
 V
fM

 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

V
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 
S

a
v
in

g
s

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

A
c

h
ie

v
e

d
 

A
n

ti
c

ip
a

te
d

 
U

n
c

e
rt

a
in

 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

  
£

m
 

£
m

 
£

m
 

£
m

 
%
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

1
.1
7
2
 

0
.8
2
8
 

0
.3
4
4
 

0
.0
0
0
 

7
0
.6
%
 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

0
.3
0
1
 

1
.3
5
1
 

1
.8
9
2
 

0
.0
0
0
 

4
4
8
.8
%
 

IC
T
 

0
.3
6
1
 

0
.2
3
3
 

0
.0
6
7
 

0
.0
6
1
 

6
4
.5
%
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
* 

1
.3
4
1
 

0
.0
0
0
 

1
.3
4
1
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.0
%
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
(2
0
1
1
/1
2
) 

0
.3
5
5
 

0
.1
0
8
 

0
.1
4
7
 

0
.1
0
0
 

3
0
.4
%
 

W
o
rk
s
ty
le
s
 

0
.2
7
0
 

0
.2
0
0
 

0
.0
7
0
 

0
.0
0
0
 

7
4
.1
%
 

S
y
s
te
m
s
 T
h
in
k
in
g
/P
ro
c
e
s
s
 E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 *
 

0
.5
0
0
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.5
0
0
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.0
%
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 A
d
m
in
 

2
.3
5
8
 

2
.1
2
7
 

0
.1
2
6
 

0
.1
0
5
 

9
0
.2
%
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

0
.2
7
5
 

0
.1
0
0
 

0
.1
7
5
 

0
.0
0
0
 

3
6
.4
%
 

C
lie
n
t 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.0
0
0
 

0
.0
%
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
ll

 V
F

M
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 
6

.9
3
3

 
4

.9
4
7

 
4

.6
6
2

 
0

.2
6
6

 
7
1
.4
%
 

 * 
T
h
e
s
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
re
 ‘
n
o
n
-c
a
s
h
a
b
le
’ 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
s
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y
 o
c
c
u
r.
 

 E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
‘U

n
c

e
rt

a
in

’ 
V

F
M

 S
a

v
in

g
s

: 
 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

 
M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
 S

a
v
in

g
s

 

IC
T

 

6
1
 
A
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
 h
a
s
 a
ri
s
e
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

w
h
e
re
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 m

a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
s
 h
ig
h
 a
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
. 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
is
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
re
a
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
lig
n
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 r
e
a
lis
e
 f
u
ll 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
. 

IC
T
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
C
a
te
g
o
ry
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

a
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 r
o
u
te
 f
o
r 
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
ri
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
. 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
(2

0
1
1

/1
2

) 

1
0
0
 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
e
s
id
u
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
0
.3
5
5
m
 h
e
ld
 o
v
e
r 
fr
o
m
 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
V
F
M
 P
ro
je
c
t.
 

£
0
.1
0
8
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro
m
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 (
C
a
te
g
o
ry
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
 

a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 r
e
n
e
w
a
ls
, 

re
te
n
d
e
rs
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
ti
fi
e
d
. 
W
h
e
re
 t
h
e
re
 

77



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 4
 –
 V
fM

 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

K
e

y
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s
 

£
’0

0
0

 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

 
M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
 S

a
v
in

g
s

 

w
h
ile
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
£
0
.1
4
7
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
T
h
is
 l
e
a
v
e
s
 £
0
.1
0
0
m
 y
e
t 
to
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
h
e
re
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
e
n
tr
e
. 

is
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
 s
h
a
re
 o
f 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
, 
th
is
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 

1
0
5
 
T
h
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 A
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 

s
a
v
in
g
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rp
in
n
e
d
 b
y
 a
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
v
e
ra
n
c
e
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 (
V
S
S
).
 T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
, 
in
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

te
rm

s
, 
in
d
ic
a
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
1
.1
4
2
m
 w
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

in
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 a
 f
u
ll-
y
e
a
r 
e
ff
e
c
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
2
.3
5
8
m
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 
s
a
v
in
g
 o
f 
£
3
.5
0
0
m
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
. 
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
, 
th
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
£
0
.1
0
5
m
 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
t 
ri
s
k
. 
 

O
v
e
ra
ll,
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
£
3
.3
9
5
m
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 t
w
o
-y
e
a
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
£
3
.5
0
0
m
. 
T
h
is
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
9
7
%
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 T
h
e
 A
c
ti
n
g
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 

d
e
p
a
rt
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 

a
n
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 c
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 ‘
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 A
d
m
in
’ 
ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
£
0
.2
7
5
m
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 

s
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
w
ill
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m

it
ig
a
te
d
 b
y
 o
n
e
-o
ff
 r
is
k
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 a
n
d
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 s
h
o
rt
fa
lls
 

in
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
..
 

 

78



 
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
 -
 C
a
rb
o
n
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 C
a
rb
o
n
 B
u
d
g
e
ts
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

  

E
m
is
s
io
n
 A
re
a
 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

C
a
rb
o
n
 

fo
o
tp
ri
n
t 

(C
O
2
 t
o
n
n
e
s
) 

2
0
1
0
/1
1
 

S
p
e
n
d
 

(n
e
t 
£
) 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

C
a
rb
o
n
 

F
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
 

(C
O
2
 t
o
n
n
e
s
) 

2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

S
p
e
n
d
 

(n
e
t 
£
) 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

C
a
rb
o
n
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
(C
O
2
 

to
n
n
e
s
)*
 

G
a
s
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 (
la
n
d
lo
rd
 l
e
v
e
l)
 

3
,4
3
9
 

£
5
9
1
,1
6
4
 

3
,2
5
4
 

£
5
0
1
,1
3
7
 

3
,1
2
4
 

  
S
c
h
o
o
ls
  

4
,5
3
4
 

£
7
9
8
,2
2
3
 

4
,1
8
9
 

£
7
1
3
,5
7
3
 

4
,0
2
2
 

  
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

3
,5
6
2
 

£
6
2
6
,4
2
0
 

3
,3
8
0
 

£
5
5
2
,1
9
6
 

3
,2
4
5
 

E
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 (
la
n
d
lo
rd
 l
e
v
e
l)
 

2
,7
6
1
 

£
5
8
6
,3
2
7
 

2
,9
5
0
 

£
6
3
7
,1
7
4
 

2
,8
3
2
 

  
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

5
,0
9
1
 

£
9
5
9
,1
4
1
 

5
,3
2
4
 

£
9
3
8
,3
3
0
 

5
,1
1
1
 

  
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
  

8
,5
6
0
 

£
1
,5
9
2
,3
4
1
 

8
,0
8
9
 

£
1
,4
2
6
,6
1
2
 

7
,7
6
5
 

  
S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 *
**
 

4
,9
5
1
 

£
7
4
5
,0
6
3
 

5
,0
3
7
 

£
9
2
2
,4
1
2
 

4
,8
3
5
 

O
il 
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

1
,2
4
5
 

£
2
5
9
,2
4
5
 

1
,0
0
0
 

£
2
5
0
,1
0
0
 

9
6
0
 

  
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
  

7
2
7
 

£
1
5
1
,9
9
3
 

6
0
4
 

£
1
5
0
,9
7
6
 

5
8
0
 

V
e
h
ic
le
 F
u
e
l 

A
ll 

2
,3
0
4
 

£
9
2
3
,8
5
3
 

2
,2
5
1
 

£
1
,0
6
4
,9
3
3
 

2
,1
6
1
 

W
o
rk
-r
e
la
te
d
 t
ra
v
e
l*
* 

A
d
u
lt
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

4
9
 

£
8
4
,0
8
8
 

5
1
 

£
9
6
,6
6
1
 

4
9
 

  
A
d
u
lt
s
 P
ro
v
id
e
r 

8
7
 

£
1
4
4
,0
4
0
 

9
1
 

£
1
5
7
,2
6
3
 

8
8
 

  
C
h
ild
re
n
 &
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

2
3
1
 

£
4
2
9
,9
9
3
 

2
8
1
 

£
5
1
0
,3
5
7
 

2
7
0
 

  
P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

6
0
 

£
1
1
6
,9
9
2
 

5
5
 

£
1
1
3
,9
9
2
 

5
2
 

  
C
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

2
9
 

£
6
0
,8
3
2
 

2
7
 

£
6
7
,4
9
9
 

2
6
 

  
T
o
u
ri
s
m
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 

1
2
 

£
3
8
,3
9
8
 

1
3
 

£
3
9
,5
4
3
 

1
3
 

  
C
it
y
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
  

5
0
 

£
8
4
,3
5
3
 

4
4
 

£
9
5
,5
1
8
 

4
2
 

  
H
o
u
s
in
g
 &
 S
o
c
ia
l 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

3
8
 

£
8
1
,9
9
2
 

5
0
 

£
1
2
5
,8
0
1
 

4
8
 

T
O
T
A
L
  

3
7
,7
3
0
 

£
8
,2
7
4
,4
5
8
 

3
6
,6
9
0
 

£
8
,3
6
4
,0
7
7
 

3
5
,2
2
3
 

   

79



 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 c
a
rb
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 f
o
ll
o
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 a
c
tu
a
l 
d
a
ta
. 

 * 
B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
n
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

**
 F
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
v
e
l 
in
c
lu
d
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
 o
n
ly
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
c
lie
n
t 
tr
a
v
e
l,
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 u
n
it
s
).
 A
ll 
s
p
e
n
d
 w
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 b
re
a
k
d
o
w
n
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 
–
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
o
n
ly
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
£
,1
0
0
0
 

w
e
re
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
, 
h
e
n
c
e
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 a
re
a
s
’ 
fo
o
tp
ri
n
ts
. 

**
* 
E
x
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
ra
ff
ic
 s
ig
n
a
ls
 

 N
O
T
E
S
 

T
h
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
to
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
w
h
a
t 
w
e
 c
a
n
 f
e
a
s
ib
ly
 c
o
lle
c
t 
d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 o
u
r 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
 a
re
a
s
. 

E
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
 m

ix
tu
re
 o
f 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 r
e
a
d
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 b
ill
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 o
u
r 
fo
o
tp
ri
n
t 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 o
n
ly
. 
T
h
e
 i
n
s
ta
lla
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
u
to
m
a
te
d
 m
e
te
r 
re
a
d
in
g
 (
A
M
R
) 
d
e
v
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 

o
f 
o
u
r 
fo
o
tp
ri
n
ts
. 

 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
ra
v
e
l 
d
a
ta
 i
s
 p
ro
b
le
m
a
ti
c
 d
u
e
 t
o
 m

is
c
o
d
in
g
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
; 
th
is
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
is
 a
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
s
 w
e
 c
a
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
 a
n
d
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 
o
u
r 
fo
o
tp
ri
n
t 
g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
 

 V
e
h
ic
le
 f
u
e
l 
d
a
ta
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 d
ra
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
2
 y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 F
le
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 m

a
k
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 d
a
ta
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
o
tp
ri
n
t 
g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 

 C
a
rb
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
n
y
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
to
 w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
ra
v
e
l.
  

  D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l  

  C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 B
u
il
d
in
g
s
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
is
 h
e
a
v
ily
 r
e
lia
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
 o
f 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
 t
o
 r
e
a
lis
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 

B
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 6
%
. 

 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
 4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 

80



D
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

B
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
; 
th
is
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 d
o
w
n
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fl
o
o
r 
a
re
a
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 e
x
p
a
n
d
in
g
 a
s
 

a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 p
u
p
il 
p
la
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
p
la
c
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
in
te
ra
c
ti
v
e
 w
h
it
e
 b
o
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 P
C
’s
. 

 H
o
u
s
in
g
 (
la
n
d
lo
rd
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
n
ly
) 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
re
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
b
o
th
 g
a
s
 a
n
d
 e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 d
u
e
 t
o
 u
p
g
ra
d
in
g
 o
f 
b
o
ile
rs
 a
n
d
 l
ig
h
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 –
 t
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
 a
c
tu
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
. 

 S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
lig
h
ti
n
g
 a
re
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 4
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 a
n
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 e
n
e
rg
y
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 n
o
w
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

B
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 e
le
c
tr
ic
it
y
 c
o
n
s
u
m
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 –
 t
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
a
ta
 c
le
a
n
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
 

a
c
tu
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
. 

 F
le
e
t 

T
h
e
 f
le
e
t 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
ill
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 b
y
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 2
2
%
 b
y
 2
0
1
6
/1
7
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 i
n
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 

B
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
le
e
t 
fu
e
l 
e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 2
.3
%
. 

 W
o
rk
 R
e
la
te
d
 T
ra
v
e
l 

It
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 f
o
re
c
a
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 f
ro
m
 w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 c
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
. 

C
a
rb
o
n
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
d
id
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
re
d
u
c
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 

     

81



82



AUDIT & STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 55 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Strategic Risk Register Update 

Date of Meeting: 20 November 2012 

Report of: Acting Director of Finance 

Contact Officer: Name: Jackie Algar Tel: 29-1273 

 Email: Jackie.algar@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 The Audit & Standards Committee has a role to monitor and form an opinion on 

the effectiveness of risk management and internal control. 
 

1.2 A key way to discharge this role is for the Committee to review the council’s 
Strategic Risk Register which was updated by the Strategic Leadership Team on 
3 October 2012. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Audit & Standards Committee notes the revised Strategic Risk Register 

(Appendix 1). 
 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
 
3.1 The Strategic Risk Register details the current prioritised issues which may affect 

the achievement of the council’s priorities, including in relation to its work with 
others across the city. It is set by the Strategic Leadership Team and reviewed 
every six months, usually for May and November each year. 

 
3.2 This Strategic Risk Register provides evidence of a risk aware and risk managed 

organisation. Generally, it reflects risk scenarios that will be common to 
comparable local authorities in this current period of change and financial 
challenge for the public sector and considers how these relate specifically to the 
city council. 

 
3.3 Strategic Risk Management Action Plans for all Strategic Risks have been 

updated following SLT’s review. These will be reported to the Committee in Part 
2 of this meeting. 

 
 
 

83



 

 

4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Consultation has taken place with the council’s Strategic Leadership Team, the 

Corporate Management Team and representatives of all the political parties. 
 
4.2 The Strategic Risk Register will be sent to the Public Sector Board for information 

which reflects the new city wide risk management approach that the PSB has 
approved. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The Strategic Risk Register reflects a number of risks which have potential 

significant financial implications for the authority either directly or indirectly. The 
risk owners are responsible for overseeing the effective management of the risks 
through the Performance & Risk Management Framework.  

 
 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Anne Silley Date: 15/10/12 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 This report comes before Audit & Standards Committee in order for the 

Committee to discharge its function of providing independent assurance of the 
adequacy of the council’s risk management and associated control environment.  

 
Having reviewed the latest Strategic Risk Register, the Committee may, if it 
considers it appropriate, make recommendations to Full Council, Policy & 
Resources Committee, one or more officers or another relevant body in the 
council. 

 
 
 Lawyer Consulted:   Oliver Dixon Date: 12/10/12 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 There are no direct equalities implications. Equalities will be incorporated as 

appropriate across all Strategic Risks and Risk MAPs by the officers responsible 
for taking actions. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The risk management methodology includes identification and management of 

sustainability issues.  There is a specific Strategic Risk, SR 8, which relates to 
Sustainability. However, Sustainability will be incorporated as appropriate across 
all Strategic Risks and Risk MAPs. 

 
 
 
 
 

84



 

 

 Crime & Disorder Implications: 
  
5.5 There are no direct implications. 
 

 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 The Strategic Risk Register is evidence of risk management in operation and 

relates to changes to the council’s operating framework.   
 
 Public Health Implications: 
 
5.7 There are no direct implications. Strategic Risk, SR2, refers to close working with 

health for the transfer of public health functions.  
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 There are no direct implications. 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Strategic Risk Register 2012/13 – reviewed by SLT October 2012. 
 
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None.  
 
 
Background Documents 
 
None.  
 

85



86



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
1

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

2
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

O
u
tl
o
o
k
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
  

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
  

ALL 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 
 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 b
e

y
o

n
d
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 S

p
e

n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

p
e

ri
o

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
jo

r 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
o
m

e
 r

is
k
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il.

 
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 
 

 T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 

ro
b

u
s
t 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 i
n

 a
 h

ig
h

ly
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

Economic/ Financial 

5
 

4
 

2
0
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

 

§
 

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

 a
n

d
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e

 a
d

e
q
u

a
c
y
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

; 
§
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 y

e
a

r 
b

u
d
g
e

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 
2

0
1
4

/1
5
; 

§
 

U
p

d
a

te
 o

f 
M

e
d

iu
m

 T
e

rm
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
; 

§
 

B
ro

a
d
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
b
u

d
g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

it
h

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 &

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
S

e
c
to

r;
 

§
 

C
lo

s
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 H
e
a

lt
h

 &
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g
 B

o
a

rd
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

 

4
   

4
 

   

1
6
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

 

 �
 

 

87



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
2

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

1
1
 
W
e
lf
a
re
 

R
e
fo
rm

 
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

ALL 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

T
h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
is

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 

w
id

e
s
p

re
a

d
 w

e
lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
s
. 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
C

re
d

it
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
re

 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 w

id
e

-r
a

n
g
in

g
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

 
R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

to
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
n
d

 h
a

v
e

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

s
 i
ts

e
lf
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

w
e

lf
a

re
 r

e
fo

rm
 o

n
 

c
it
iz

e
n

s
 e

g
: 

* 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 
in

d
iv

id
u
a

ls
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
; 

* 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
in

g
 

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

a
y
 t
h
e
ir
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 
(m

o
rt

g
a
g

e
 o

r 
re

n
t)

; 
* 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
"s

p
o
t 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
" 

B
e
d
 

a
n
d
 B

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

Economic/ Financial 

4
 

4
 

1
6
 

●
 

R
E
D
 

 

 

§
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 P
ro

je
c
t 

  
  

  
B

o
a

rd
; 

§
 

W
id

e
r 

W
e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 g

ro
u

p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e
p
o

rt
in

g
 

to
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 B

o
a

rd
; 

§
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 W
e
lf
a

re
 

R
e

fo
rm

s
; 

§
 

W
id

e
s
p

re
a

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 &

 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

R
o

b
u

s
t 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 o
n
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a

x
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

w
id

e
r 

W
e

lf
a

re
 

R
e

fo
rm

; 
§
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
B

u
d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e

s
s
. 

 

4
 

4
 

1
6
 

●
 

R
E
D
 

 

  
�

 

 

88



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
3

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

1
0
 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 S
e

n
io

r 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
R

is
k

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
 A

n
d

  
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
   

ALL 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

m
u

s
t 
o

p
e

ra
te

 t
o

 a
 h

ig
h

 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

o
p

e
n

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y
. 
 

 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 

 

T
h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
if
 i
t 
fa

ils
 

to
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 d
a
ta

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

h
e

n
 :

 
* 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 m

a
y
 s

u
ff

e
r 

lo
s
s
 o

r 
d

a
m

a
g
e

; 
* 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 s

u
ff

e
r 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
re

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
, 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
e
n

a
lt
ie

s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 
p

e
n
a

lt
ie

s
; 

* 
It

 m
a

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

in
 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

b
y
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
s
u

b
-o

p
ti
m

a
l 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
. 

 

Customer/ Citizen 

5
 

4
 

2
0
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

 

§
 

A
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

r'
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 i
s
 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 o

n
g
o

in
g
. 
T

h
e

 p
la

n
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
: 

1
) 

R
e
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

a
n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
; 

2
) 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 o

v
e
rh

a
u

l 
a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
ll 

p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

; 
 

3
) 

S
e
c
u
ri

ty
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

A
n
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
e

d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
; 
 

4
) 

R
e
c
o
rd

s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
–
 U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

a
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
d

it
, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
e
t 
re

g
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

te
n
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u

le
 

a
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

§
 O

p
e

n
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
L

ic
e

n
c
e

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
p
e

n
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

g
e
n

d
a
; 

§
  F

re
e

d
o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 –
 s

tr
e

a
m

lin
e

d
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
. 

 

4
 

4
 

1
6
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

  

89



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
4

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

6
 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

 a
n

d
  

 D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
   

Tackling Inequality 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 C
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
, 
h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

th
e
 l
e
a

d
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 w

it
h
 l
e
a

d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

. 
K

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
: 

* 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 1
8
0
0

 c
h
ild

re
n

 i
n
 t
h
e

 c
it
y
 f

o
r 

w
h
o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

le
g

a
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 
c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 u

n
p
re

d
ic

ta
b

le
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
n

n
o
u

n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
b
o

u
t 
c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 

to
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e
d
s
. 

* 
A

s
 w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 "

b
it
e

" 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

m
o
re

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
* 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
e

in
g

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 c

a
s
e
s
 

in
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a
re

, 
e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

n
e
e
d

. 
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o

: 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

ill
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n

e
r 

to
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

.  
 A

n
y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 b
u
d

g
e
t 

b
u
t 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

re
m

a
in

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

 

Customer/ citizen 

4
 

    

5
 

    

2
0
 

 

●
 

R
E
D
 

 
   

* 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
m

a
in

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 o

u
r 

m
o
s
t 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 S

tr
o
n
g

e
r 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
, 

S
tr

o
n
g

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
; 

 
* 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 r

is
k
, 
e
g

 
a
lc

o
h
o
l,
 d

ru
g

s
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o
l;
 

* 
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
ri
s
k
s
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

h
e
ld

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
; 

* 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

* 
L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 (

L
A

C
) 

a
 

c
le

a
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
a
re

n
ti
n
g

 s
u
b
-c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 

3
 

    

5
 

    

1
5
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

  
�

 

   

90



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
5

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

3
 

P
a
c
e
 a
n
d
 

V
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 

p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e
 

 

ALL 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

A
ll 

p
u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 
s
p

e
n
d

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

re
fo

rm
 

a
g
e

n
d

a
. 

 R
is
k
 s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o
n

s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

fo
rm

 a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
e

.g
. 

N
H

S
 a

n
d

 t
h
o

s
e

 
e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
, 
m

a
y
 l
e

a
d
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 
re

fr
a
m

e
 t

h
e

ir
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 w
a

y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
ir
 

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
p

la
n

s
 a

s
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e

d
. 
 

 E
n

h
a
n

c
e
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
e

d
 

u
p

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

le
a

r 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

e
a

c
h

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 

 
 

Customer/citizen 

5
 

 

4
 

  

2
0
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

 

•
 

S
tr

o
n
g

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
it
y
: 

- 
J
o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t;

 
- 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
- 

C
it
y
 I

n
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 (
P

S
B

);
 

- 
C

it
y
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
; 

- 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 •
 

T
h
e
 P

S
B

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 o
n
 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
: 

- 
N

e
e
d
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 w
h

ic
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
re

fo
rm

s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
ir
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

; 
  

- 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t;
  

- 
J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

ilo
ts

; 
  
  

- 
B

e
tt
e
r 

jo
in

t 
re

s
o
u
rc

in
g
. 

 •
 

C
it
y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

, 
re

c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 

 

5
 

 

3
 

  

1
5
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
 

  
�

   

91



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
6

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

1
  

 

R
e
a
d
in
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

o
f 
lo
c
a
li
s
m
 

 In
te

ri
m

 L
e

a
d

 
fo

r 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

    

Engaging People Who Live & Work in the City 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 
 T

h
e
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

lis
m

 a
g
e

n
d

a
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

c
o
u

n
c
ils

 t
o

 
d

e
liv

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
s
 

w
it
h

 g
re

a
te

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

re
p

a
re

: 
•
 F

o
r 

e
x
p
re

s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 

g
ro

u
p
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

ig
h
t 
to

 
C

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

ig
h
t 

to
 B

id
; 
 

•
 F

o
r 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
; 

 

•
 T

o
 b

u
ild

 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

tw
o
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 P

ilo
t 
a
re

a
s
; 

•
 F

o
r 

in
d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
s
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
, 
e
.g

. 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

. 
R
is
k
 s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 
 

T
h
e

 l
o

c
a

lis
m

 a
g
e

n
d

a
 i
s
 a

 f
lu

id
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

le
x
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 
n

e
e
d

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 b
e

s
t 
fi
t 

th
e

 
n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
. 

Professional/ Managerial/ Partnerships 

4
 

  

4
 

  

1
6
 

 ●
 

R
E
D
  

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
; 

•
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 p

re
p
a

re
 t
o

 
re

s
p

o
n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
; 

•
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
 o

v
e

rs
e

e
s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

n
e

w
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

n
g
e

s
; 

•
 

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a
c
ts

 o
n

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
L

o
c
a

lis
m

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

; 

•
 

L
o

c
a

lis
m

 A
g
e

n
d
a

 i
s
 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il,

 w
it
h

 a
c
ti
v
e

 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

L
e

a
d

e
r;

 

•
 

P
u

b
lic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 B

o
a

rd
 

in
fo

rm
e

d
 o

f 
p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
it
y
 

im
p

a
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
c
a

lis
m

 A
c
t.
 

 

3
 

  

4
 

  

1
2
 

 ●
 

A
M
B
E
R
 

 

 �
  

92



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
7

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

4
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

R
e
s
il
ie
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

G
ro
w
th
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 

P
la

c
e

 
   

Creating a more Sustainable City 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ro

le
 t
o

 c
h
a

m
p

io
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
in

w
a

rd
 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t.
 I

t 
c
a

n
 u

s
e

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 l
a

n
d

 
a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 

th
is

 a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 

le
v
e

rs
, 

e
.g

. 
h

o
u

s
in

g
, 
p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t,

 l
e

is
u

re
, 

to
u

ri
s
m

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

o
w

e
rs

. 
 

 R
is
k
 s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 
 

If
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
d

o
 t
h

is
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
’s

 
e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 f

a
lt
e

rs
 i
n
 t

h
e

 w
a

k
e

 o
f 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
in

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

c
o

n
o
m

y
. 

If
 t

h
is

 
h

a
p
p

e
n

s
, 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
b
e

 m
e

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 c
it
y
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

w
o

u
ld

 s
u
ff

e
r 

if
 l
o

c
a

l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
ts

 i
f 

n
o

t 
a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

  

Economic/ Financial 

4
 

  

4
 

  

1
6
 

 

●
 

R
E
D
 

 

•
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 t

h
e

 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

; 

•
  T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 

w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 b

id
 f

o
r 

£
3
M

 o
f 

G
ro

w
in

g
 P

la
c
e

s
 F

u
n

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

i3
6

0
; 

•
  C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 e

x
p

lo
ri
n

g
 a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 

o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
le

v
e

rs
 

to
 u

n
lo

c
k
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 g

ro
w

th
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 l
e

d
 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

&
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 A

g
e
n

c
y
; 

•
  T

h
e

 C
it
y
 P

la
n

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

n
e

w
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

S
1

0
6
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
, 
a

n
d

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 o
n
 c

it
iz

e
n

s
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
; 

 

•
  L

a
u
n

c
h

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
s
p

e
c
tu

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

 
 

3
 

  

4
 

  

1
2
 

 ●
 

A
M
B
E
R
 

   �
   

93



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
8

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

5
 

C
it
y
 w
id
e
 

e
m
p
lo
y
a
b
il
it
y
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 

P
la

c
e

 
       

Creating a more Sustainable City  

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 r
o

le
 

in
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

in
g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

b
o

u
r 

fo
rc

e
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 &

 i
n

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 l
e

g
it
im

a
te

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
: 
 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 d
o

 t
h

is
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 c

o
u

ld
 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
c
it
y
’s

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n

d
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

s
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 p

u
rs

e
. 

 
Physical 

4
 

    

4
 

    

1
6
 

 

●
 

R
E
D
 

 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

a
l 
w

o
rk

 v
ia

 P
S

B
 a

n
d
 L

S
P

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 E
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
&

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
: 

−
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

s
 a

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
; 

−
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

s
k
ill

s
 n

e
e
d
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
; 

−
 

In
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 

o
f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 &

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
; 

−
 

C
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
p
o
lic

y
 &

 i
n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

o
p
ti
m

is
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 f

o
r 

d
is

- a
d

v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 

p
e
o
p

le
; 

•
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

C
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 s
k
ill

s
 s

h
o
p

 i
n
 Q

u
e
e
n
s
 

R
o
a
d
 f

o
r 

a
n

 A
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
 T

ra
in

in
g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

o
p
e
n

e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
2
);

 

•
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fu
n
d
s
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u

th
 

E
m

p
lo

y
a

b
ili

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

Y
E

S
) 

to
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

1
6
-1

8
 w

h
o
 a

re
 N

o
t 
in

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

T
ra

in
in

g
; 

•
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 b

id
s
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 

e
.g

. 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
, 
g
re

e
n
 j
o

b
s
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 

  

3
 

    

4
 

    

1
2
 

 

●
 

A
M
B
E
R
 

 

 �
 

94



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
9

 

Strategic Risk No. 

R
is
k
 T
it
le
 a
n
d
 

O
w
n
e
r 
  

Council Priority 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 

a
n
d
 P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 

A
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
) 

 

Risk Category 

Initial Likelihood  (L)  

Score 

Initial Impact ( I) 

Score 

Risk Score L x I 
   (Dot indicates RAG rating)  

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
n
d
  

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
  

 (b
u

t 
a

re
 n

o
t 

lim
it
e
d

 t
o

) 
  

Residual Likelihood  

(L)  Score 

Residual Impact ( I) 

Score 

Residual Risk Score 

L x I 
    

8
 

B
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 

m
o
re
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

c
it
y
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 

P
la

c
e

 
  

Creating a more Sustainable City 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
: 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
iv

ic
 

le
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
o
le

 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
rs

 t
o
 

p
re

p
a
re

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
h
a

n
g

in
g
 

p
a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 

s
e
v
e
re

 w
e
a

th
e
r 

e
v
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
n

g
e
r-

te
rm

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e

 

lo
c
a
ll
y
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
: 

* 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
fu

e
l/
e

n
e
rg

y
/w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l)
; 

* 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

it
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
; 

* 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 

s
c
a
rc

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 w

a
te

r 
a

n
d
 l
a
n

d
. 

R
is
k
 S
c
e
n
a
ri
o

: 
 

If
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
ils

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n

, 
it
 

m
a
y
 a

ff
e
c
t:
 

* 
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

in
w

a
rd

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

d
u
s
tr

ie
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
; 

* 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
if
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
a
il 

to
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

s
e
v
e
re

 w
e
a
th

e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

, 
e
.g

. 
m

a
in

ta
in

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
ro

u
te

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
; 

* 
th

e
 c

it
y
's

 l
o

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 f
u
tu

re
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n

g
e
 

a
d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

fo
o
d
, 
e
n

e
rg

y
, 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
; 

* 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
s
ta

te
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
; 

* 
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
’s

 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 c

re
d

e
n
ti
a

ls
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

s
im

ila
r 

c
it
ie

s
. 

 

Environmental/ Sustainability 

3
 

4
 

1
2
 

 

●
 

A
M
B
E
R
 

 

•
 

L
a

n
d
fi
ll 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 

o
f 

E
n
e

rg
y
 R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 a

t 
N

e
w

h
a

v
e

n
; 

•
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 s
e

t 
o
u

t 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

ll 
ta

rg
e

ts
 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
a

n
d

 
q
u

a
n

ti
fy

 i
m

p
a

c
t;
 

•
 

T
h
e

 E
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 w

ill
 

e
x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 c
a

rb
o
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 f
u

tu
re

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

2
0

1
2

/1
3
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

; 

•
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

it
y
 

F
o

o
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 t
a

k
e
 o

n
 b

o
a

rd
 

fi
n
d

in
g
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
; 

•
 

C
a

rb
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o
 

o
v
e

rs
e

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
a

rb
o
n

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

; 

•
 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 l
e

d
 

b
y
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
. 

3
 

3
 

9
 

 

●
 

A
M
B
E
R
 

 

 �
 

 

95



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
ri
g
h
to
n
 &
 H
o
v
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 
- 
re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 S
L
T
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
  

  
  
  

R
is
k
s
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
id
u
a
l 
R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 (
a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
li
k
e
li
h
o
o
d
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t)
 

S
e
e
 f
in
a
l 
p
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 r
is
k
 s
c
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 u
s
e
d
  

 
1

0
 

 R
is
k
 S
c
o
ri
n
g
  

T
h
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

u
s
e

s
 t
h

is
 r

is
k
 m

a
tr

ix
 t

o
 “

s
c
o

re
”,

 i
.e

. 
a

s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

is
k
 s

c
e

n
a

ri
o

 o
c
c
u

rr
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 i
f 

it
 d

id
, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 a
ff

e
c
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

              
T
e
rm

s
 U
s
e
d
 

•
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

–
 a

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 d
e

ta
ils

 t
h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
ts

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 c

it
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
; 

•
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 N

o
. 

–
 a

 u
n

iq
u

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 e
a

c
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
. 

A
s
 t
h

e
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 a

re
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
, 
th

e
s
e

 u
n

iq
u

e
 r

is
k
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

re
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h
a

t 
c
a

s
e

, 
a

 g
a

p
 i
n
 s

e
q
u

e
n

ti
a

l 
n

u
m

b
e

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 a

ri
s
e

; 

•
 

R
is

k
 S

c
e

n
a

ri
o

 –
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
 o

r 
o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

d
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
; 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 –

 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 a

ri
s
e

 i
f 

th
e

 r
is

k
 s

c
e

n
a

ri
o

 o
c
c
u

rs
; 

 

•
 

In
it
ia

l 
L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d
/I

m
p

a
c
t 

S
c
o

re
s
 –

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
is

k
 s

c
e
n

a
ri
o

 b
e
fo

re
 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
M

it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
; 

•
 

R
A

G
 r

a
ti
n

g
 –

 a
 w

a
y
 t

o
 c

o
lo

u
r 

c
o
d

e
 r

is
k
s
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 t
h

e
m

. 
“R

A
G

” 
d

e
ri

v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

ls
 o

f 
R

e
d

, 
A

m
b

e
r,

 G
re

e
n

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 f
o

r 
ri
s
k
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

it
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 e
x
tr

a
 c

o
lo

u
r 

o
f 

Y
e

llo
w

; 

•
 

M
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d
 A

c
ti
o

n
s
 –

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
/m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h
e

 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 a
n

d
/o

r 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

ri
s
k
 s

c
e

n
a

ri
o

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
; 

•
 

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

/I
m

p
a

c
t 

S
c
o

re
s
 –

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

ta
k
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 

th
e

 M
it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 &

 A
c
ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 

“r
e

a
lis

ti
c
” 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ri
s
k
s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r;

 

•
 

R
is

k
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
 –

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 l
is

t 
o
f 

ri
s
k
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

 “
ro

u
n
d

e
d

” 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ri
s
k
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

p
e

rs
p

e
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

B
y
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 R
is

k
 C

a
te

g
o

ry
, 

it
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d
 i
n
 a

 r
is

k
 r

e
g
is

te
r.

 

 
M

O
S

T
 L

IK
E

L
Y
 I
M
P
A
C
T
  

L
IK
E
L
IH
O
O
D
  

In
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

 (
1
) 

M
in

o
r  

 (
2
) 

M
o
d
e
ra

te
 

 (
3
) 

M
a
jo

r 
 

4
) 

C
a
ta

s
tr

o
p
h
ic

 

 (
5
) 

A
lm

o
s
t 

C
e
rt

a
in

 (
5
) 

5
 

1
0
 

1
5
 

2
0
 

2
5
 

L
ik

e
ly

 (
4
) 

4
 

8
 

1
2
 

1
6
 

2
0
 

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 (

3
) 

3
 

6
 

9
 

1
2
 

1
5
 

U
n
lik

e
ly

 (
2
) 

2
 

4
 

6
 

8
 

1
0
 

A
lm

o
s
t 

Im
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 (

1
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

96



97

Document is Restricted



100



101

Document is Restricted



104



105

Document is Restricted



114


	Agenda
	45 Minutes
	49 Complaints Update
	52 Audit Commission: Annual Audit Letter 2011/12
	Enc. 1 for Audit Commission: Annual Audit Letter 2011/12

	53 Internal Audit Progress Report 2012/13
	54 Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5
	Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5
	Enc. 1 for Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5
	Enc. 2 for Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5
	Enc. 3 for Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5
	Enc. 4 for Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5
	Enc. 5 for Targeted Budget Management (TBM) 2012/13 Month 5

	55 Strategic Risk Register Update
	Strategic Risk Register 2012-13 reviewed Oct 12 Part 1

	57 Part Two Minutes - Exempt Category 3
	58 Strategic Risk Management Action Plan Report - Exempt Category 3
	Strategic Risk Assesment Report - reviewed Oct 12 Part 2


